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About Equitable Group Inc.
Equitable Group Inc. is a niche mortgage lender. Our core business is first charge mortgage financing, which we offer through our wholly owned

subsidiary, The Equitable Trust Company. Founded in 1970, Equitable Trust is a federally incorporated trust company. Our Company serves

single family, small and large commercial borrowers and their mortgage advisors. It also serves the investing public as a provider of Guaranteed

Investment Certificates. Equitable provides GICs across all Canadian provinces and territories. We actively originate mortgages in Alberta,

Manitoba, Ontario and Quebec. Equitable Group's common and preferred shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbols

ETC and ETC.PR.A. Visit the Company on line at www.equitablegroupinc.com or www.equitabletrust.com.
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Growing our lending business in the areas where we have the best
opportunity to earn attractive and sustainable returns.

Through our three core lending businesses, Single Family Lending Services,

Commercial Mortgage – Broker Services and Commercial Lending Services, Equitable

has the market presence, competitive strength and capabilities to profitably add new

mortgage assets to our portfolio while limiting our exposure to risk. Going forward,

we are focused on long-term growth and on identifying and investing in the

development of mortgage products and selected geographic markets that will

enhance shareholder value.

Funding growth by leveraging our strong capital position.

Through earnings retention and the successful completion of a non-dilutive

preferred share offering in 2009, Equitable completed the year with the strongest

capital ratio in our history. Our tangible common equity (“TCE”) ratio at year end was

also strong, both on an absolute basis and in comparison to the ratios of Canada’s

largest banks. As a result, we are well positioned to take advantage of opportunity

for mortgage asset growth in a favourable competitive environment – and in a

recovering economy.

Protecting shareholder value and the integrity of our institution
through focusedmonitoring andmitigation of business risks.

Lending institutions are exposed to a variety of risks. We seek to mitigate each one,

including the key challenge – credit risk. To do this, we adjust our mortgage products,

terms and credit criteria according to both market conditions and our risk-weighted

return requirements. We place a strong emphasis on security evaluation and analysis

of the risks in each transaction. We limit the loan to value ratios on uninsured

mortgages at origination. This approach, along with effective mortgage administration

and collection processes, has provided us with strong credit metrics – even during the

recent economic recession – and limited our exposure to loss.

O�

On

200920082007200620052004

1.5

1.9 2.0 1.9

2.6

1.8

3.4

1.9

4.1

2.8

3.8

4.1

Total Capital (including general allowance)

Tangible Common Equity

Tier 1

200920082007200620052004

11.9

9.1 9.1

11.9

8.2 8.2

11.0

7.5 7.5

11.0

7.7 7.7

13.5

10.1 10.1

17.6

12.6

14.6

Q4Q3Q2Q1Q4Q3Q2Q1

0.30
0.16

0.33

1.57 1.49
1.34

0.88
0.64

2008 2009

(1) Excludes CMHC-insured mortgages which are less than
365 days in arrears.

(1) Capital ratios for 2007 – 2009 are calculated under Basel II.

Total on and off-balance sheet assets ($ billions)

Capital ratios (1) (%)

Mortgages in arrears 90 days ormore(1)

(%of totalmortgageprincipal outstanding)

For our Shareholders
Building a bright future means...
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Continuously improvingour operating efficiencies for thebenefit of
shareholders, customers and business partners.

Equitable operates successfully as both a niche lender and nationally regulated deposit

taking member of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation (“CDIC”) without a

branch network. By maintaining valued relationships with mortgage brokers who

originate mortgages and deposit agents who originate deposits, effectively managing

costs and improving efficiencies, we have achieved low overheads, one of the best

productivity ratios in the Canadian financial services industry and a reputation for

effective service.

Optimizing return on equity (“ROE”) adjusted for risk.

Each Equitable mortgage is expected to deliver a return that meets established ROE

thresholds. To make this happen, we assess our pricing on a mortgage-by-mortgage

basis. We have delivered average annual growth in net income of 33.0% and an

average ROE of 17.2% since we became a public company in 2004 – despite significant

volatility in credit, capital and real estate markets over the past two years.
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For our Customers & Business Partners
Building a bright future means...
Providing superior service.

Stated simply, today’s markets demand more from everyone, particularly those who provide professional advice. We understand this reality

and seek to provide superior service to our business partners – mortgage brokers, national mortgage banking organizations and deposit

agents – so they can provide superior service to their customers. Superior service means many things, but most especially clear

communications, delivered in a responsive manner. As a nimble organization, we pride ourselves on responding to opportunity quickly with

decisions, rates and terms. The competitive nature of mortgage and GIC markets means we won’t win every deal but by demonstrating that

service is in our lifeblood, and empowering our team to serve, we intend to make Equitable Trust the first choice provider in our chosen markets.

Improving our processes.

We know how to close a deal quickly, but most of all, we know the importance of time – to our customers and business partners. For that

reason, we strive to deliver quick turnaround, we monitor our level of service, use benchmarking to track performance and efficiency, and

continue to enhance what we do and how we do it.

Using technology smartly.

Equitable will never lose sight of the fact that ours is a people business where personal attention to detail, including security evaluation and

risk assessment, have long been cornerstones of our success. We also believe that the effective use of technology helps us to better serve our

customers and business partners. In general, we look for technology opportunities that enrich rather than replace personal interaction.

Developing our products.

When it comes to mortgages and deposits, we understand that one size does not fit all and that product features are important. For this reason,

we have developed a number of different solutions for our markets. As a member of the CDIC, we provide both long-term and Cashable GICs

available for Tax Free Savings Account (“TFSA”) or non-registered purchases. And within our mortgage lending business, we offer a variety of

fixed and floating rate products to meet the specific needs of customers with different borrowing requirements.
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Empowering our resources.

Unquestionably, it’s a challenge to grow while also delivering superior service, ensuring that we are prudent in our lending practices and

compliant with the regulations and standards set for us as a federally regulated trust company. To meet this challenge, we keep pace

with the pressures of growth by managing our resources carefully, recruiting the best talent, creating appropriate incentives and

empowering our employees. In a business that relies on judgment rather than formulas, and personal touch rather than execution by rote,

we are proud of the experience, knowledge and ideas that our team brings to work every day.

Taking a team approach.

Equitable is not a large financial institution measured on the basis of employment. Our team numbers 145, but what we lack in size, we

more than make up for in skill, capabilities, determination and a coordinated, team-based approach for achieving success across our

business. Our team engages in a wide range of activities including securitization of single and multi-family insured mortgages, origination

of conventional mortgages of all types from single family through to large commercial, mortgage servicing and deposit raising – while

meeting all of the regulatory and reporting requirements of a regulated financial institution – in a highly efficient manner. We’ve used

our size to our advantage by engineering each of the business lines and operational areas to work in partnership in pursuing an over-

arching goal: to offer the best mortgage and investment solutions to Canadians in our chosen markets. Everyone talks about service: we

deliver and we’ve been doing so for 40 years.

Hearing thewhole story.

Through open conversation with borrowers, we seek to uncover and understand each customer’s unique circumstance, unlike lenders

that rely strictly on automated underwriting systems. This enables us to make much more informed credit decisions and to see beyond

numbers to the character and potential of our customers. While credit scores play their part, we are different in an otherwise

compartmentalized industry because through personal inquiry, Equitable teams see and hear what others often miss. This allows us to

lend with confidence, offering customized and personalized service to entrepreneurs and new Canadians who are often overlooked

and under-served by large, impersonal financial institutions.

Knowing ourmarkets.

To us, the starting point for good mortgage lending decisions is an intimate understanding of real estate markets. We don’t just take a

macro view, we immerse ourselves in our niches, right down to the neighbourhoods in which our borrowers live. As a result, we research

employment trends, labour markets, new housing starts, migration and immigration statistics before entering new markets. We make a

point of getting to know appraised values and valuation trends and initiate lending activity in a cautious manner. But once we know the

market, our market intimacy pays dividends because it gives us the insight to better serve customers and their advisors with efficient

and informed decision making.
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Equitable in Profile

Single Family Lending Services

Our Single Family Lending Services line of business offers excellent

investment return potential and has proven credit evaluation and

collection capabilities. Competitively, it enjoys broad relationships

with an extensive network of licensed mortgage brokers and agents

in our selected territories, has a highly responsive customer service

ethic and delivers solutions to an attractive, under-served niche.

Single family customers include business-for-self Canadians, new

immigrants and investors who have the financial resources to achieve

real estate ownership but don’t meet the traditional credit criteria of

the major banks. For new single family purchases or re-financings, we

provide open and fixed-term mortgages with terms of up to five years

on a variety of properties including homes and rental units. At year

end 2009, Single Family Lending Services accounted for $836.5 million

or 30.2% of our total mortgage principal outstanding and remained

on track to be our fastest-growing line of business.

Commercial Mortgage – Broker Services

Through this proven line of business, we specialize in mortgage

lending to qualified entrepreneurs, business operators and real estate

investors who seek to buy mixed-use (storefront), retail office, multi-

residential, commercial and industrial properties. Commercial

Mortgage – Broker Services (“Broker Services”) has a long history of

success built on its extensive network of mortgage broker

relationships, disciplined underwriting process, deep understanding

of customer needs and clear niche market focus. Borrowers who use

our solutions are often new Canadians who have strong business

credentials in their native countries. Broker Services has originated

mortgages with value that is in the $100,000 to $2.5 million range.

As with single family mortgages, our rigorous lending process is

coupled with consideration of the applicant beyond numerical

measures. At year end 2009, this business represented $670.8 million

or 24.2% of mortgage principal outstanding.
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Commercial Lending Services

Commercial Lending Services funds large, sophisticated transactions

that are secured by mortgages originated by commercial broker

specialists. These commercial mortgages are chosen to provide low

risk and good return characteristics. With many years of extensive

experience, a market-oriented strategy and disciplined underwriting

practices, Commercial Lending Services has successfully participated

in lending on a variety of commercial property types – including

multi-family residential apartment buildings – with mortgages

ranging from $500,000 to more than $25 million. Like all of our

lending businesses, Commercial Lending Services employs a strategy

to optimize ROE adjusted for risk. At year end 2009, this line of

business represented $1.3 billion or 45.6% of mortgage principal

outstanding.

Deposit Services

Through The Equitable Trust Company, we are a federally regulated

deposit taking institution and member of the CDIC. As such, we are

licensed to issue Guaranteed Investment Certificates (“GICs”) in every

province and territory in Canada. The taking of GIC deposits is central

to funding our business. To build additional relationships with

independent deposit agents, investment dealers, financial planners

and other intermediaries who recommend our products, we

maintain a dedicated Deposit Services operation and provide short,

long-term (up to five years) and Cashable GICs for investors wishing

to save securely for the future. At year end 2009, total deposit

principal outstanding was $3.3 billion.
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FellowOwners:

In 2009, Equitable Group took significant and deliberate steps to

build on the foundation we’ve created for a bright future, while also

delivering record earnings in a recessionary economic climate. As a

result, we enter the new decade with a great opportunity for value

creation.

The most visible sign of corporate development was in our capital

structure. On every key metric, Equitable displayed strength and

progress. Our total capital ratio including general allowance was

17.6% at year end and our Tier 1 capital ratio was 14.6% – both well

above the levels achieved in any previous period in our 40-year

history. Our tangible common equity ratio of 12.6% was also well

above that of Canada’s major chartered banks.

We built this position by retaining earnings, shifting our business to

lower risk-weighted assets and completing a non-dilutive preferred

share equity offering which qualified for Tier 1 regulatory capital for

our wholly-owned subsidiary Equitable Trust.

Consequently, we have the capacity to substantially grow our

mortgage assets and the strength necessary to protect the integrity

of our institution from volatility that often accompanies early stage

economic recoveries.

2009 Performance

Equitable delivered outstanding results in 2009.

• Net income increased year over year by 33.2% to $51.4 million –
a new record;

• Diluted earnings per share grew 20.9% to $3.36 – also a new
record;

• Return on equity was 17.0%, ahead of the 2008 return of 16.6%;

• Productivity ratio, a measure of the efficiency of our business,
improved to 24.9%; thereby, maintaining Equitable’s status as a
low-cost leader in our industry;

• Book value per share reached $21.83, up 23.0% from $17.75 a year
ago.

The quality of our mortgage book was also preserved through

disciplined underwriting decisions and diligent collection. While

higher than they have been in the past five years, net realized loan

losses of $6.5 million were low relative to the size of our institution

and small considering the impact of the recession on employment

levels and personal bankruptcies in Canada.

Based on Equitable’s performance in 2009, results achieved since we

became a public issuer in 2004, and since our founding in 1970, we can

confidently conclude that Equitable can perform in good times as well

as bad. The most recent example is the 2008/2009 time period of

performing in bad times and it reflects well on both the Equitable team

and the success of our strategies. In particular, our mortgage pricing

strategies, which were implemented to reduce our exposure to the

monetary easing of the past two years, served us well and resulted in

a steady expansion of net interest margin in each quarter of 2009.

Service and Value: The Foundation for Our Future

Now that credit markets have been largely restored and economic

recession is giving way to signs of recovery, we are focused on

building our business.

Our plan for continued success is based on two imperatives: superior

service for our customers and business partners and superior value

creation for our shareholders.

For the increasing number of mortgage brokers, deposit agents and

customers we do business with, our goal is to offer responsive

solutions. This means taking advantage of our size and market

knowledge to make decisions more efficiently than our competitors

– recognizing that time is money for our business partners and their

customers. Our responsive service ethic is being augmented by

investments in automation and new product development. Overall,

Message to Shareholders
Austin Beutel
Chairman of the Board

AndrewMoor
President and
Chief Executive Officer
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we want our customers and their advisors to select Equitable first in

our chosen markets.

Underlying these efforts is a firm understanding within our culture

that we can only be successful, as a financial institution, by serving

the needs of the marketplace. Over the past five years, we believe

Equitable has done this, as evidenced by 22.5% average annual

growth in our GIC deposits and 20.8% average annual growth in total

mortgage assets.

For shareholders, we seek to build on our strengths to drive value.

These strengths include:

• a solid presence and growing reputation in real estate markets
chosen for their potential and made more attractive over the past
two years due to diminished competition;

• extensive relationships with mortgage agents / brokers and
deposit agents;

• ample liquidity and capital;

• an effective and low-cost, non-branch business model;

• proven credit risk management capabilities that are sensitive to,
and calibrated for, our niches and economic conditions.

Responsible Growth and Improvement

In 2010 and beyond, we intend to capitalize on our stronger

foundation to grow our mortgage book in a diversified, low-risk

manner and with a continued emphasis on single family mortgage

asset accumulation – balanced by originating attractive assets in our

commercial businesses.

Our Single Family Lending Services business receives funding priority

not only because of its strong capabilities but because it offers:

• excellent return potential in an environment of diminished
competition;

• the advantage of requiring lower levels of economic capital
relative to commercial mortgages, which is important as we strive
to maintain financial strength.

To achieve responsible growth, we will maintain our sound credit risk

management practices as we originate new assets. In response to

improved market conditions, we stepped up the pace of our sales

efforts late in 2009 and were rewarded with sizeable increases in

production for Single Family Lending Services as well as our other

business lines. We believe that there are quality growth opportunities

available in the markets we serve.

In 2010, we will also continue to shape the various components of

our commercial mortgage portfolio as we have been doing over the

past two years to enhance returns and improve the credit risk profile.

The year past saw significant growth in our CMHC-insured

securitization business, which ended the year with $4.1 billion of

assets. We anticipate that market dynamics will be less favourable for

this business in 2010 than was the case in 2009. However, we do

expect to continue to securitize insured mortgages that generate

recurring income.

Our enterprise risk management approach is designed to protect

both the integrity of the institution and shareholder value. We intend

to manage risk carefully as we grow.

The Year Ahead

Credit and economic conditions in Canada have shown clear signs of

recovery since the middle of 2009. Demand for residential real estate

has been surprisingly strong driven, in large part, by exceptionally

low interest rates. With recovery comes the inevitable prospect of

higher interest rates. We actively monitor the local real estate markets

we lend in and adjust our credit policies to try to ensure that we are

not lending imprudently against unsustainable values. Our current

view is that, while house prices have likely risen faster than justified

by economic fundamentals, the risk of a significant and sudden

downward adjustment to house prices remains low. We are vigilant

to the possibility that a house price bubble could develop and are

managing our lending activities to ensure that this would not impact

the integrity of Equitable.

AGreat Opportunity

In closing, we believe we have a great opportunity to create value,

but also a clear and well-accepted duty to ensure we build

responsibly and in a low-risk manner. We are confident in the

strength of our foundation and we will act in a way that preserves

this strength. Directors and Officers collectively own 16.3% of

Equitable’s common shares, meaning our interests and those of all

shareholders are aligned in the singular objective of delivering value.

Our sincere thanks go to the employees and Board of Directors of

Equitable for your investment of time, energy and expertise. Most

especially, we thank our shareholders, customers and business

partners for participating in the Equitable success story. We are

committed to making a bright future for all.

Yours sincerely,

Austin Beutel Andrew Moor
Chairman of the Board President and

Chief Executive Officer
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The Canadian economy appears to be recovering and this raises the prospect of interest rate increases later in
2010. How is this affecting your thinkingwith regard to originations?

Most economists believe that interest rates will increase through 2010 and Equitable is managing its business in a manner that manages risks

in this environment. Increases in interest rates are reflective of an improving economy and for many of our customers this will improve the

stability of income to service mortgage debt even with higher interest rates. As we originate new mortgages, we encourage appropriate

mortgage products that will reduce our customers’ risk exposure to rising interest rates.

In termsof riskmanagement, have youadjusted your underwriting criteria basedon thepotential for improving
markets?

Equitable continuously adjusts its underwriting criteria to adjust to market conditions. In the latter part of 2008, we adjusted our underwriting

criteria to reflect our view that there was an elevated risk of real estate prices softening in the face of a severe recession. Since that time

Equitable has adjusted its underwriting to more normal criteria that have served the institution well over the years. We actively monitor the

markets we serve and will make further adjustments as we see risks and opportunities emerge.

What is Equitable doing to attract single family business given the increased focus placed on originating this
business in 2010?

We are focused on service and being the lender of choice for brokers operating in our market segments. To support this mission, we have

expanded our underwriting staff and streamlined internal processes. This service focus has enabled us to attract new relationships and expand

others and this has resulted in increased originations and will continue to do so in the future. In addition, we have recruited top talent in sales

management to deepen existing broker relationships and to forge new partnerships within our broker network. Overall, we are focused on

providing service at every touch point.

Equitable Trust’s capital ratios were significantly stronger at year end 2009. How does this impact Equitable’s
business for 2010?

Our position gives us a very strong foundation to pursue growth but not at the expense of our strength. Our approach will be to achieve the

dual goal of building high quality assets, including single family mortgages that consume less regulatory capital than other forms of mortgage

lending, as a means of earning attractive investment returns while keeping our total capital ratio, Tier 1 ratio and tangible common equity at

robust levels to enable solid growth beyond 2010.

Management Q&A
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What’s your planwith respect tomanaging capital?

Equitable’s strategic plan is to fund growth primarily through the retention of earnings and through the issuance of non-dilutive forms of

capital. The Company’s view is that shareholders will be best served by adopting rigorous processes for the allocation of capital to the assets

and projects that produce the highest returns adjusted for risk. Strong returns on capital strengthen the foundations of our business and give

Equitable the capital strength to grow assets and earnings faster. During 2009, the Company was successful in raising non-dilutive Tier 1 capital

and Tier 2 sub-debt that augmented the growth in our capital base through the retention of earnings. We expect to raise these non-dilutive

forms of capital as necessary and as part of our overall capital plan.

Do you plan to expand business from a product and geographic perspective?

Equitable is a growth company. We believe that our products and services occupy well-defined niches within the Canadian mortgage market

that are not well served by traditional financial institutions. In our core market of Ontario, we believe there is substantial opportunity for growth

in all areas of our business. Over the last few years, we have expanded successfully into Alberta and Manitoba and have built solid foundations

for further growth in these markets. In 2010, we expect to further expand our geographic footprint in other parts of Canada. The latest example

includes our recent opening of an office focused on commercial mortgage lending in Montreal. Future expansion might include secured

lending on asset types other than real estate. While we are ambitious to expand our business, we will not compromise our passion to provide

outstanding service to our customers or our determination to manage risk in pursuit of growth.

What impact will the January 1, 2011 adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) have on
Equitable’s business in the foreseeable future?

Disclosure of the impact of the adoption of IFRS is found in the MD&A, beginning on page 36 of this Annual Report. The most significant

impact of this change in accounting standards for Equitable is related to the accounting treatment of the securitization of CMHC-insured

mortgages. Under IFRS, mortgages securitized under these programs will now be shown on the balance sheet and earnings will be recognized

as spread income over the life of the mortgage. This is a significant change to the treatment under prevailing Canadian GAAP which removes

these mortgages from our balance sheet at the time of securitization and recognizes most of the profit at that time. Equitable expects to

continue to actively participate in the Canada Mortgage Bond (CMB) program under IFRS as this funding mechanism provides a reliable and

low-cost source of funding for mortgages. The transition from Canadian GAAP to IFRS is complicated and will have significant impacts on both

the financial statements of the Company, as well as the regulatory capital position and ratios of Equitable Trust. Management believes that it

is well organized to make the transition to IFRS and that the adoption of this new accounting standard does not warrant a fundamental change

in the Company’s business activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is provided in order to enable readers to assess the financial position and the results of
operations of Equitable Group Inc. (“Equitable” or the “Company”) for the three months (“quarter”) and year ended December 31, 2009. This
MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s unaudited interim consolidated financial statements for the fourth quarter (see
Tables 17, 18 and 19 on pages 33, 34 and 35 of this report) and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2009, and accompanying notes. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). This report, and the information provided herein, is dated as at February 24, 2010. Additional information
about the Company, including its Annual Information Form, is available on the Company’s website at www.equitablegroupinc.com and on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

The material below contains forward-looking statements. Please see “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Business Profile andObjectives

The Company is a niche mortgage lender that provides loans secured by first mortgages and mortgages insured by the Canada Mortgage and
Housing Corporation (“CMHC”), through its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Equitable Trust Company (“Equitable Trust”), which was founded in
1970. Equitable Trust is a federally-regulated financial institution whose activities are supervised by the Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions Canada (“OSFI”). The primary sources of the Company’s revenues are interest income as well as commitment, renewal and discharge
fees derived from its mortgage financing business. In addition, the Company earns income from the securitization of insured mortgages
administered by CMHC through the Government of Canada’s National Housing Act Mortgage Backed Securities (“MBS”) and Canada Mortgage
Bond (“CMB”) Programs, which comprises income in the form of gains earned at the time of securitization as well as recurring income from its
continuing residual interest in the cash flows that are earned by the securitized mortgages. The Company also earns interest and dividend
income from investments. The Company operates without a branch network, choosing instead to achieve lower overheads by using
independent mortgage brokers to originate mortgages and independent deposit agents to originate deposits. This business model and the
Company’s strong competitive position have established it as a leader in its mortgage lending niches and have contributed to excellent long-
term financial results.

Equitable Trust’s ability to fund its mortgage business by attracting depositors as a regulated Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation (“CDIC”)
member is also a core strength of enduring enterprise value. This ability has allowed Equitable to build a diversified mortgage portfolio secured
by residential and commercial real estate. The Board and management are focused on long-term growth, identifying and investing in the
development of mortgage products and those selected geographic markets that will deliver superior returns on capital, thereby enhancing
shareholder value.

Given this focus and its assessment of the current economic environment, management has established the following key corporate objectives
for 2010:

• Grow the lending businesses in which the Company has the best opportunity to earn attractive and sustainable returns.

• Optimize return on equity (“ROE”) adjusted for risk, with a view to enhancing the value of its diversified mortgage portfolio and maintaining
prudent credit risk practices.

• Protect shareholder value through focused monitoring and mitigation of the Company’s business risks, including the use of prudent credit
risk practices, the disciplined management of arrears and the maintenance of optimal levels of regulatory capital and liquidity.

• Fund growth by leveraging the Company’s strong capital position, which is primarily supported through the retention of earnings.

• Continuous improvement of processes and operating efficiencies, recognizing that the provision of superior service to its business partners
and customers is critical to its growth objectives.

Lending Businesses

The Company has three core lending businesses, which align well with its competitive strengths, competencies and profitability objectives:

• Single Family Lending Services (“Single Family”): This business benefits from Equitable Trust’s well-established relationships with a large
independent broker network, its focus on customer service, as well as Equitable’s experience in utilizing a disciplined approach to credit
evaluation and collections.

• Commercial Mortgage − Broker Services (“Broker Services”): This line of business funds mortgages on a variety of property types, including
mixed-use, apartment buildings, commercial and industrial properties sourced from independent mortgage brokers. Broker Services
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specializes in assisting experienced entrepreneurs, business operators and real estate investors. Its broad mortgage broker relationships
and strong underwriting capabilities are among its key strengths.

• Commercial Lending Services: This business funds larger, more sophisticated transactions that are secured by mortgages originated through
commercial broker specialists. These commercial mortgages provide low risk and good return characteristics for Equitable.

Operating Efficiency and ROE

Equitable evaluates each mortgage and assesses its pricing based on the respective contribution that the mortgage can make to ROE, such
that each mortgage is expected to deliver a return on investment that meets established requirements. While attractive pricing can be garnered
on a variety of loan types, single family residential mortgages typically generate a higher ROE than commercial mortgages because they
require less regulatory capital, even though they involve higher processing costs.

Management believes that shareholders are best served by focusing on lending opportunities that optimize ROE. The Company is also
committed to using automation and other means to improve operating efficiencies and reduce costs where possible.

2009 Highlights

During 2009, the Company achieved its highest earnings ever and posted strong results that were in line with its financial and strategic goals
for the year, despite the protracted and severe turbulence from which Canadian and international capital and credit markets are struggling to
recover. Consistent with its 2009 objectives and on the basis of improving market conditions in the latter half of the year, the Company grew
its Single Family business faster than its other mortgage businesses and continued to reshape various aspects of its commercial mortgage
portfolio in order to enhance its interest rate and credit risk profile. At the same time, owing to retention of earnings and the recent $50 million
preferred share transaction, Equitable Trust held the strongest capital ratio and liquidity positions since the Company was publicly listed, with
a total capital ratio of 17.6% (including general allowance), as well as a Tier 1 regulatory capital ratio and tangible common equity ratio (see
explanation in the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section of this MD&A) at December 31, 2009 of 14.6% and 12.6%, respectively.

Earnings Performance

In 2009, Equitable produced strong earnings that reflected growth in its net interest margin. Equitable also securitized and sold CMHC-insured
mortgages valued at $1.4 billion. As a result, Equitable established another new annual earnings record:

• net income increased 33.2% over 2008 to $51.4 million;

• diluted earnings per share increased 20.9% over 2008 to $3.36 per share; and

• ROE for 2009 increased to 17.0% compared to 16.6% in 2008.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company’s results were impacted by a one-time benefit that lowered its income taxes, primarily as a result
of reductions in future income tax rates that were enacted during the quarter by the province of Ontario. These newly enacted rates lowered
the Company’s future tax provision by $1.5 million or $0.10 per share.

Demonstrating the efficiency of the Company’s approach to business, the 2009 productivity ratio on a taxable equivalent basis (“TEB”– see explanation
of TEB in the“Non-GAAP Financial Measures”section of this MD&A) was 24.9% – an improvement over the 27.4% ratio achieved in 2008.

Credit Quality

The quality of the Company’s mortgage portfolio at year end continued to reflect the effectiveness and prudence of its underwriting. The
Company does not lend against uninsured mortgages at high loan-to-value ratios, thereby limiting its exposure to loss. Management
continually monitors credit risk exposure in order to ensure that underwriting policies are prudent and reflective of current and expected
economic conditions. Mortgages in arrears 90 days or more were 0.64% of total mortgage principal outstanding at December 31, 2009
compared to 1.57% a year earlier. The quarter-over-quarter consecutive improvement in this ratio throughout the year is the result of effective
mortgage administration and collections practices and reflects a relative improvement in real estate market conditions within Equitable’s
lending regions over the course of the year. Nonetheless, management took the prudent step at the end of the third quarter to deem a $19.2
million residential construction mortgage as being impaired, placing a $1.0 million specific allowance against this mortgage in that quarter
and a further $1.0 million allowance in the fourth quarter. The provisions taken reflect the increased credit risk that is associated with this
mortgage and the respective borrower. Notwithstanding the increased risk, the interest payments related to this mortgage were up-to-date
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at December 31, 2009. Inclusion of this mortgage in net impaired mortgages was the primary reason that the impaired mortgages were 1.20%
of total mortgage principal at the end of 2009, only slightly lower than the 1.21% reported at the end of 2008. Similarly, the provision for this
mortgage resulted in an increased allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total mortgage principal of 0.53% at December 31, 2009
compared to 0.48% reported at December 31, 2008. Net realized loan losses of $6.5 million incurred during 2009 primarily relate to the
successful completion of loan workout activities disclosed in the Company’s 2008 Annual Report.

2010 Business Outlook

Management is confident in the strength of the Company’s business model based on 2009 and long-term financial performance, solid
operational progress in executing against its plan and the current strength of demand for mortgage financing in Equitable’s product and
market niches. Management has been focused on identifying and originating quality lending opportunities and continues to find these in
Canadian real estate markets. Equitable continues to monitor the economic and credit market landscape, which, while volatile in the recent
past, has shown signs of continual improvement since the second quarter of 2009.

Given improving real estate markets and the increasing comfort that management has with credit conditions, Equitable Trust has increased
its sales efforts, within the context of ongoing lending and risk management discipline. In the latter part of 2009 and early in 2010, these
increased sales efforts have resulted in increased single family residential origination volumes, which is a trend that management expects to
continue. In line with the focus that the Company has placed on safeguarding the future health of the mortgage portfolio, management
continues to be confident that its underwriting processes will ensure improving returns that do not demand the taking of excessive risk. While
management continues to be concerned that there is some potential for further volatility in real estate markets, the levels of defaults and
losses that the Company experienced during 2009 have been manageable. Although the Company has had to manage higher delinquency
levels during 2009 than those experienced historically, the relatively healthier real estate markets that have been experienced have allowed
it to sell properties and work out problem loans in an expeditious and effective manner. Management believes that its levels of arrears and
defaults will continue to be manageable in 2010.

As anticipated in prior quarters, the Company’s net interest margin has continued to improve. Relative to years past, Equitable faces fewer
competitors in its core mortgage markets and this is expected to provide a continuing opportunity to improve interest rate spreads on the
Company’s mortgage portfolio. The Bank of Canada has recently announced that, conditional on its outlook for inflation, it continues to expect
that its benchmark interest rate will remain at its current level until the end of the second quarter of 2010. As such, the Company does not
anticipate reductions in the prime rate of interest (“Prime Rate”) from its current very low level. Indeed, any increases in this benchmark interest
rate that may occur in the latter half of 2010 may temporarily expand the Company’s net interest margin (“NIM”) as a result of the fact that
floating rate mortgage yields tend to increase immediately, while corresponding increases in the pricing of Guaranteed Investment Certificate
(“GIC”) deposits lag behind and take effect only as new deposits are raised. Generally, recent market dynamics have resulted in an easing of
overall deposit costs and an improvement in interest spreads. During 2009, management implemented significantly improved pricing for its
new and renewing commercial mortgages and added interest rate floors to variable rate mortgage business that was originated or renewed.
Furthermore, the Company’s portfolio of customer deposits comprised of cashable GICs that have matured or are maturing in the near future
have or will be replaced with less expensive funding. These factors will continue to support the Company’s currently strong NIM position,
though significant improvements are not expected beyond this position in the next few quarters.

Equity securities held by the Company are comprised of preferred shares, which are classified as available for sale assets for financial instrument
accounting purposes. This portfolio increased by $53.2 million during 2009, primarily as a result of $33.2 million in purchases, net of sales and
redemptions, and $20.0 million in decreased unrealized losses related to market value deficiencies reported at December 31, 2008. This
improvement in market value continues to support management’s view that, while economic volatility in Canadian stock markets and resultant
unrealized losses have affected these high-quality investments, there is no permanent impairment in this portfolio.

The GIC market continues to provide ample funding for Equitable Trust’s business. However, management believes that the maintenance of
higher than normal levels of liquidity on its balance sheet is a prudent measure, intended to insulate the Company’s business and ensure it is
well-positioned to manage any unexpected and unforeseen events that may impact its liquidity during periods of uncertainty in Canadian and
international capital markets. The cost associated with maintaining excess liquidity has a negative impact on NIM.

The Company’s fee income and earnings are expected to perform commensurate with real estate market stabilization and health. As an
approved seller under the CMB Program, Equitable Trust has been able to transact securitization activities at interest rate spreads that continue
to be above historic norms. While it believes that it will originate strong insured mortgage volumes that it will be able to securitize through
this program, Equitable expects to transact 2010 securitization activities at lower volumes and lower spreads than those experienced in 2009.
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While the majority of the Company’s earnings and cash flows are generated from the interest it earns on the mortgage portfolio held on its
balance sheet, the Company also benefits from the recurring cash flows it receives from its $4.1 billion securitized mortgage portfolio – a
portfolio that has grown by just under $1.3 billion since the fourth quarter of 2008 and that management intends to continue to grow during
the next few quarters.

On September 1, 2009, the Company issued 2.0 million non-cumulative 5-year rate reset Series 1 perpetual preferred shares at an issue price
of $25.00 per share to initially yield 7.25% per annum, for gross proceeds of $50.0 million. This was a ground-breaking transaction for Equitable,
which it expects will allow it to continue to access a form of Tier 1 regulatory capital that was previously unavailable to financial institutions
of its size. The gross proceeds of this offering were intended for use for general corporate purposes, in support of growth in the Company’s
mortgage business operations and future redemption of Equitable Trust’s subordinated debt obligations. Concurrent with the issuance of the
preferred shares, Equitable Trust redeemed $2.5 million of its Series 5 Debentures (“Series 5”).

During December 2009, the Company issued a total of $23.2 million of Series 8 Debentures (“Series 8”), a new class of subordinated debt, at
an initial interest cost of 6.50% – approximately 376 basis points over the then current 5-year Government of Canada benchmark yield. The gross
proceeds of the offering of the Series 8 were used by the Company to purchase subordinated debt of Equitable Trust, which qualifies as Tier
2B regulatory capital and will, in turn, be used for general corporate purposes. The Series 8 will pay fixed interest semi-annually for the first five
years of its 10-year term, and then bear a floating interest rate that is calculated at the 90-day Banker’s Acceptance Rate plus 480 basis points
thereafter. Concurrent with the Series 8 issuance, Equitable Trust redeemed all $30.8 million of its remaining Series 5 subordinated debentures,
which bore a weighted average interest cost to Equitable Trust of 7.43%. The Company also repaid $13.3 million of its term credit facilities with
a Canadian chartered bank. The issuance of the new Series 8 provided Equitable the ability to extend the average term of its subordinated debt
at lower average interest costs, on advantageous terms and with better structure. Subject to regulatory approval, the Company may provide
the holders of certain of its other outstanding subordinated debentures the option of re-investing in a new debenture or having their existing
debenture redeemed. Irrespective of potential redemptions that may cause some marginal decline in the Company’s total capital ratio, the
Company’s capital position will remain robust and will be able to support meaningful growth in Equitable’s mortgage portfolio.

Given its strong balance sheet, quality mortgage portfolio and focused risk management philosophy, Equitable remains well-positioned, with
a high level of financial health, including prudent levels of capital and liquidity, to capitalize on future business opportunities.

The purpose of this outlook is to give the reader an indication of factors that may affect Equitable’s performance in the near-term. Readers
should be aware that information contained in this section may not be appropriate for any other purpose. See “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements.”

Dividends

On February 24, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend in the amount of $0.10 per common share, payable on
April 5, 2010, to common shareholders of record at the close of business on March 15, 2010.

Also, on February 24, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend in the amount of $0.453125 per preferred share,
payable on March 31, 2010, to preferred shareholders of record at the close of business on March 15, 2010 (see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements).
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Table 1: Selected financial information

($ THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE, PER SHARE AND EMPLOYEE AMOUNTS) 2009 2008 2007(1) Change from 2008

OPERATIONS
Net income 51,438 38,611 31,171 12,827 33.2%
EPS – basic $ 3.37 $ 2.79 $ 2.47 $ 0.58 20.8%
EPS – diluted $ 3.36 $ 2.78 $ 2.44 $ 0.58 20.9%
Net interest income 73,169 64,343 61,579 8,826 13.7%
Total revenue 207,824 226,766 185,933 (18,942) (8.4%)
Return on equity(2) 17.0% 16.6% 17.2%
Return on average assets 1.3% 1.0% 1.0%
Mortgage origination(3) 2,272,537 2,330,593 1,903,581 (58,056) (2.5%)
Productivity ratio – TEB(4) 24.9% 27.4% 29.2%
Number of employees at year end 145 135 124
BALANCE SHEET AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET
Total assets 3,846,074 4,087,551 3,409,626 (241,477) (5.9%)
Mortgages receivable 2,763,020 3,023,015 2,874,241 (259,995) (8.6%)
Shareholders’equity 373,861 264,146 203,170 109,715 41.5%
Mortgage backed security assets under administration 4,093,180 2,825,063 1,888,250 1,268,117 44.9%
COMMON SHARES
Number of common shares outstanding at year end 14,903,846 14,882,710 12,952,710
Dividends per common share $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ – –%
Book value per common share $ 21.83 $ 17.75 $ 15.69 $ 4.08 23.0%
Common share price – close $ 21.25 $ 11.75 $ 28.75 $ 9.50 80.9%
Market capitalization 316,707 174,872 372,390 141,835 81.1%
EQUITABLE TRUST CAPITAL RATIOS
Tangible common equity ratio(5)(6) 12.6% 10.1% 7.7%
Tier 1 capital ratio(6) 14.6% 10.1% 7.7%
Total capital ratio (including general allowance)(6) 17.6% 13.5% 11.0%
CREDIT QUALITY
Realized loan losses – net of recoveries 6,516 36 21
Mortgages in arrears 90 days or more as a % of total mortgages(7) 0.64% 1.57% 0.30%
Net impaired mortgages as a % of total mortgages(8) 1.20% 1.21% 0.30%

(1) 2007 results include a $3.4 million after tax write-down of the Company’s preferred shares included in its investment portfolio. Excluding the impairment write-down, net incomewould have
been$34.5million, basicanddilutedearningsper sharewouldhavebeen$2.74and$2.71, respectively, returnonequitywouldhavebeen18.9%, returnonaverageassetswouldhavebeen1.1%
and productivity ratio – TEBwould have been 27.2%– see the “Non-GAAP FinancialMeasures” section of thisMD&A.

(2) Return on equity is calculated based on net income available to common shareholders divided by theweighted average common equity outstanding during the year.
(3) Doesnot include$546,846 for the year endedDecember 31, 2009 (2008 - $777,393, 2007 - $824,656) of advances related tomortgagesheld for salewarehouse facilities. See Table 8 -Mortgages
held for sale.

(4) Decreases in this ratio reflect improved efficiencies.
(5) The tangible commonequity ratio is definedas shareholder’s equity plus anyqualifyingother non-controlling interest in subsidiaries less preferred shares issuedandoutstanding, anygoodwill,
other intangibleassetsandcertaincomponentsofaccumulatedother comprehensive income,asapercentageof risk-adjustedassets lessother intangibleassets. This ratio isanon-GAAP financial
measure that is used as a key indicator of capital strength.

(6) 2007 capital ratios are calculated under Basel II.
(7) Mortgages in arrears 90 days ormore do not include CMHC-insuredmortgages that are less than 365 days in arrears.
(8) Net impairedmortgages do not include CMHC-insuredmortgages that are less than 365 days in arrears and reflect grossmortgage principal of impairedmortgages less specific allowance.
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Financial Review – Earnings

Net Income

Net income increased 33.2% year-over-year to $51.4 million in 2009 from $38.6 million in the prior year.

Diluted earnings per share were $3.36, compared to $2.78 in 2008, an increase of 20.9%. These increases are primarily due to increased net
interest income as well as fees and other income earned in 2009. The drivers of this growth are discussed below.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the main driver of profitability for the Company. It is measured on aTEB so that income from equity securities may be compared
on a pre-tax basis to ordinary interest income. Table 2 illustrates the Company’s net interest margin in 2009 compared to 2008 on a TEB.

Table 2: Net interest income

2009 2008
Average Revenue/ Average Average Revenue/ Average

($ THOUSANDS) balance expense rate(1)(2)(3) balance expense rate(1)(2)(3)

Interest revenues derived from:
Assets:
Mortgages $ 2,880,584 $ 162,991 5.7% $ 2,934,665 $ 186,519 6.4%
Liquidity investments(2) 799,500 12,078 1.8% 574,172 19,226 3.3%
Equity securities – TEB(2) 123,368 8,419 7.3% 126,270 9,789 7.3%
Total interest earning assets – TEB $ 3,803,452 $ 183,488 4.8% $ 3,635,107 $ 215,534 5.9%
Total assets – TEB $ 3,966,813 $ 183,488 4.6% $ 3,748,589 $ 215,534 5.7%

Interest expenses related to:
Liabilities and shareholders’equity:
Customer deposits $ 3,433,864 $ 101,471 3.0% $ 3,319,612 $ 142,238 4.3%
Bank term loans(3) 36,048 3,188 7.4% 44,595 3,025 6.8%
Subordinated debentures(3) 34,820 2,310 7.3% 31,969 2,348 7.3%
Total interest bearing liabilities $ 3,504,732 $ 106,969 3.1% $ 3,396,176 $ 147,611 4.3%
Total liabilities and shareholders’equity $ 3,966,813 $ 106,969 2.7% $ 3,748,589 $ 147,611 3.9%

Net interest income –TEB $ 76,519 $ 67,923
Net interest margin – TEB 1.9% 1.8%
Less: Taxable equivalent adjustment (3,350) (3,580)
Net interest income $ 73,169 $ 64,343

(1) Average rate is a simple average calculated with reference to opening and closing period balances.
(2) Average rates for liquidity investments and equity securities are calculated based on the average of themonth-end balances outstanding during the year.
(3) Average rate for bank term loans and subordinated debentures is calculated based onweighted average balances outstanding during the year.

Total interest revenues, using the TEB approach, decreased 14.9% to $183.5 million in 2009, compared to $215.5 million in the prior year.
Mortgage interest income decreased $23.5 million or 12.6% for the year ended December 31, 2009 over the prior year, primarily due to
decreases in the Prime Rate and the resultant reduction in yields that the Company earned on variable rate mortgage assets, as well as its
more recently originated fixed rate mortgages. Mortgage interest income also declined commensurate with the level of contraction in the
Company’s mortgage portfolio. Decreases in government and bank benchmark rates also resulted in reduced interest income being earned
by the Company on its liquidity investments, which was approximately $7.1 million less in 2009 than that in the prior year. Income derived from
equity securities on a TEB decreased $1.4 million to $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the prior year.
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Average interest rates paid on average customer deposit balances outstanding during 2009 decreased to 3.0% compared to 4.3% in 2008.
During 2009, overall interest expense on customer deposits decreased $40.8 million or 28.7% over 2008, despite a 3.4% increase in average
customer deposits outstanding during the year compared to 2008. This was primarily the result of lower prevailing GIC rates in the market. The
market for customer deposits provides ample funding for the Company’s mortgage lending operations. Late in 2008, increased competitive
demand for GIC deposits resulted in short-term deposits being raised at tighter spreads to Prime Rate than have historically prevailed in the
market, with a corresponding compression in interest rate spread on floating rate mortgages. However, during 2009, competitive demand for
GIC deposits moderated to more normal levels.

Net interest income – TEB increased $8.6 million or 12.7% to $76.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $67.9 million
earned during 2008. During the first quarter and early in the second quarter of 2009, the Company experienced consecutive total decreases
of 125 basis points in the Prime Rate. Generally, interest on the Company’s floating rate mortgages is immediately affected by any change in
the Prime Rate while the effect on liabilities is delayed. Since customer deposits are in the form of GICs, the Company’s Cashable GICs are the
only liabilities that might be immediately affected by an increase in interest rates through early redemption and reinvestment by GIC holders.
Therefore, an increase in the Prime Rate usually leads to temporary improvements in net interest margin while a decrease has the opposite
effect. Despite the effects of these earlier decreases in the Prime Rate, the Company was able to increase net interest margin over consecutive
quarters by significantly improving pricing for new and renewing mortgages. The Company also continued its initiative of implementing
interest rate floors to the variable rate mortgage business that renewed or was originated. Improved pricing and implementation of floors
favorably impacted the Company’s net interest margin during the latter half of 2009. The Company also benefitted from lower GIC rates that
prevailed in the latter half of 2009, as deposits that were locked in for longer terms or were cashable in nature matured and were replaced with
less expensive money. The Company’s net interest margin increased to an average 1.9% in 2009, compared to 1.8% in 2008. Improvement in
net interest margin was noted throughout the year, progressing from an average 1.6% in the first quarter with consecutive increases of
approximately 30 basis points per quarter, to an average of 2.4% in the fourth quarter of 2009.

From time to time, the Company enters into interest rate swaps in order to hedge interest rates on term GICs used to fund floating rate
mortgages. Interest rate swaps of $10.0 million were outstanding at December 31, 2009. The GICs to which these swaps relate were designated
as held for trading financial instruments and carried at fair value. Any change in their value is included in interest expense and all transaction
costs related to raising these GICs are expensed at the time of designation.

Other Income

Other income includes ancillary fees related to the origination and administration of the mortgage portfolio, as well as gains on the
securitization and sale of mortgages and the related excess interest spread, net of servicing fees, earned on mortgages securitized through
the CMHC MBS and CMB Programs. Sundry income, gains or losses on investments and other non-mortgage related fees are also included in
other income. Other income increased by $12.9 million or 86.9% to $27.7 million in 2009, compared to $14.8 million in 2008. This was primarily
the result of an increase of $11.1 million in total income from loan securitization activities, as well as a $1.4 million increase in fees and other
income.

The increase in total income from loan securitizations was directly related to the fact that, during 2009, the Company securitized and sold $1.4
billion of CMHC-insured mortgages compared to $1.3 billion in 2008. Gross margins on the securitization of CMHC-insured mortgages increased
to an average of 131 basis points during 2009 (118 basis points in the fourth quarter of 2009) from 80 basis points during 2008 (125 basis
points in the fourth quarter of 2008). Since the second quarter of 2008, Equitable Trust has been able to benefit from credit market dynamics
that have allowed it to securitize single family and multi-family residential mortgages at spreads and volumes that have been higher than
historical norms. The primary components of securitization income are excess interest spread, net of servicing fees and gains on sale of
mortgages.
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Table 3: Other income

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 Change from 2008

Loan securitizations – gains on securitization activities $ 20,221 $ 10,076 $ 10,145 100.7%
Loan securitizations – excess interest spread, net of servicing fees 4,169 3,199 970 30.3%
Total income from loan securitizations 24,390 13,275 11,115 83.7%
Fees and other income 3,246 1,832 1,414 77.2%
Net gain (loss) on investments 50 (295) 345 116.9%
Total $ 27,686 $ 14,812 $ 12,874 86.9%

Non-interest Expenses

The largest component of non-interest expenses relates to compensation and benefits. The year-over-year increase of $3.2 million or 14.2%
in 2009 compared to 2008 reflected a $2.1 million increase in payroll costs as well as an increase in general and administrative costs of $1.1
million. Included in compensation and benefits expense during 2009 and 2008 was a charge for stock-based compensation expense in the
amount of $0.8 million related to grants of options. The accounting effect of charges for stock-based compensation expense result in
corresponding increases to contributed surplus.

The Company’s productivity ratio – TEB was 24.9% in 2009 compared to 27.4% in 2008. This ratio is a non-GAAP financial measure derived by
dividing non-interest expenses by the sum of net interest income – TEB and other income. While a lower productivity ratio is generally
associated with a more efficient cost structure, the Company’s productivity index can also be affected by increases and declines in funding
volumes and the Company’s need to maintain human resource staffing levels commensurate with volume expectations. Management believes
this ratio will increase over time as a result of growth in single family mortgage originations, since origination and servicing of these mortgages
are more costly per dollar of underlying mortgage; however, the offset is an expected improvement in risk-adjusted returns on equity.

Table 4: Non-interest expenses and productivity ratio

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 Change from 2008

Compensation and benefits $ 15,367 $ 13,253 $ 2,114 16.0%
Licenses, regulatory fees and insurance 1,917 1,452 465 32.0%
Premises and equipment 2,449 2,385 64 2.7%
Marketing, travel and communications 1,130 1,223 (93) (7.6%)
Mortgage servicing 687 1,121 (434) (38.7%)
Legal, audit and related services 550 630 (80) (12.7%)
Other 3,807 2,627 1,180 44.9%
Total $ 25,907 $ 22,691 $ 3,216 14.2%

Productivity ratio – TEB 24.9% 27.4%

IncomeTaxes

The Company’s statutory income tax rate decreased to 32.4% from 33.3% in 2008. This decrease was caused by a reduction in Ontario corporate
income tax rates that were enacted in the fourth quarter of 2009 as well as the Company’s increased operations in Alberta, which has a lower
income tax rate than the Company’s Ontario operation. The Company’s effective income tax rate in 2009 was 24.7% compared to 27.2% in 2008.

The effective tax rate was less than the statutory tax rate of 32.4% primarily as a result of tax-exempt dividend income earned from its equity
securities portfolio. Income taxes are allocated between current and future taxes. Future taxes result from timing differences between the
Company’s financial statement income and net income for tax purposes. Future taxes are established at the rates expected to be in effect at
the date of the reversal of the timing differences. The net decrease in future income tax expense of $5.2 million from the prior year was primarily
due to future taxes payable relating to loan securitizations as well as future rate reductions.
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Financial Review – Balance Sheet

Mortgage Portfolio

Equitable’s mortgage portfolio is diversified across both residential and commercial real estate asset categories and consists of first charge and
CMHC-insured mortgages. Mortgage principal decreased $260.7 million or 8.6% during 2009 to $2.8 billion at year end. This reduction resulted
from management’s explicit earlier intention to maintain a slower pace of commercial mortgage growth in order to improve capital ratios as
well as overall investment returns on a risk-weighted basis, as well as a more conservative credit approach in its single family and mixed-use
businesses. In addition to being affected by the natural amortization and payout of mortgages, the decline in the size of this portfolio should
be put in the context of the 2009 growth of 44.9% or $1.3 billion in the Company’s off-balance sheet portfolio of securitized CMHC-insured
multi-unit residential and single family mortgages.

Table 5: Mortgages receivable – by property type

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 % of total 2008 % of total 2007 % of total

Single family dwelling(1) $ 1,010,266 36.5% $ 1,035,300 34.2% $ 739,050 25.8%
Mixed-use property 325,816 11.8% 333,235 11.0% 287,643 10.0%
Multi-unit residential 383,945 13.9% 515,575 17.0% 660,071 23.0%
CMHC-insured multi-unit residential 141,460 5.1% 74,380 2.5% 178,971 6.2%
Commercial 689,402 24.9% 649,591 21.5% 652,783 22.8%
Mortgages held for sale 104,728 3.8% 297,952 9.8% 272,370 9.5%
Construction 110,596 4.0% 120,908 4.0% 77,395 2.7%
Total mortgage principal 2,766,213 100.0% 3,026,941 100.0% 2,868,283 100.0%
Deferred net mortgage commitment fees,

net (discounts) premiums and sundry (13) (2,786) 368
Mortgages receivable 2,766,200 3,024,155 2,868,651
Accrued interest 11,455 13,411 14,515
Allowance for credit losses (14,635) (14,551) (8,925)
Total mortgages receivable $ 2,763,020 $ 3,023,015 $ 2,874,241

(1) Includes $56,777 (2008 - $176,436, 2007 - nil) of CMHC-insured and $37,869 (2008 - $12,267, 2007 - nil) of other insured single family dwellingmortgages.

At December 31, 2009, single family dwelling mortgages represented the largest portion of the portfolio (see Table 5). CMHC-insured single
family dwelling mortgages comprised 2.1% of the portfolio. Single family dwelling mortgages decreased by $25.0 million or 2.4% from
December 31, 2008, consistent with the Company’s more conservative approach to credit during the unstable credit, real estate and
employment markets of the early part of 2009. However, management noted an increased pace of origination from the Company’s Single
Family line of business, starting with the fourth quarter of 2009.

The portfolio of mortgages on mixed-use properties decreased by $7.4 million or 2.2% from December 31, 2008. Mortgages on mixed-use
properties are originated by Equitable’s Commercial Mortgage − Broker Services team.

Multi-unit residential mortgages decreased by $131.6 million or 25.5% from December 31, 2008, primarily as a result of the Company’s success
in renewing a significant number of these as CMHC-insured mortgages during the year. The multi-unit residential portfolio includes apartment
buildings and retirement residences.

CMHC-insured multi-unit residential mortgages comprised 5.1% of the portfolio compared to 2.5% a year ago, while the principal balance
outstanding increased $67.1 million over the preceding year to $141.5 million. The principal balance outstanding is affected by the timing of
securitization activities and the emphasis that the Company has placed on securitizing and selling this category of mortgages through the CMB
Program. The majority of the securitization business conducted by the Company in 2009 related to CMHC-insured multi-unit residential
mortgages.

Commercial mortgages increased $39.8 million or 6.1% from December 31, 2008.
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At December 31, 2009, the Company’s portfolio of mortgages held for sale was comprised of 25.5% residential and 74.5% commercial
mortgages that are held within mortgage warehouse line of credit facilities that the Company has made available to third-party financial
lending firms who require financing prior to pooling and eventually selling their mortgages to investors. Mortgages held for sale decreased
64.9% from 2008.

During 2009, construction mortgages decreased $10.3 million or 8.5% from the prior end-of-year level to comprise 4.0% of the portfolio at
December 31, 2009.

Floating rate mortgages within the portfolio comprised $0.8 billion at December 31, 2009 and represented 29.9% of the portfolio. In order to
limit the Company’s interest rate exposure on floating rate mortgages during 2009, management implemented a policy of converting floating
rate mortgages to fixed or putting interest rate floors on these mortgages as they renewed. As a result, fixed rate mortgages within the portfolio
represented 70.1% of the portfolio at December 31, 2009, compared to 50.0% at December 31, 2008. Floating rate mortgages that had no
floors amounted to 15.6% of the portfolio at December 31, 2009, compared to 39.4% at December 31, 2008. However, management does not
expect to see further declines in variable rate exposure in coming quarters.

The majority of the Company’s mortgages are sourced each year by a network of independent mortgage brokers and other mortgage
originators. A mortgage brokerage arrangement exists with First National Financial LP (“FNFLP”), one of Canada’s leading mortgage banking
organizations, to source and administer CMHC-insured multi-unit residential and conventional mortgages, including a component of
mortgages held for sale. FNFLP originated approximately $601.4 million of the Company’s outstanding on-balance sheet mortgage principal
at December 31, 2009. CMHC-insured mortgages are funded almost exclusively for securitization through CMHC Programs. When these
mortgages are securitized and sold, the Company records a gain on sale and retains the rights and obligations with respect to servicing the
mortgages.

At December 31, 2009, consistent with a year ago, 72.7% of the Company’s mortgages were secured by properties located in Ontario. The
Company’s Alberta business continued to grow at a conservative pace in 2009 to 16.2% of the portfolio. Of the remaining portfolio, 5.1% are
located in Quebec, 1.3% in Manitoba, 2.6% in British Columbia, with the remaining 2.0% in the rest of Canada.

Table 6: Mortgage principal outstanding – by lending business

2009 2008
($ THOUSANDS) %of total % of total

Single Family Lending Services $ 836,526 30.2% $ 818,290 27.0%
Commercial Mortgage − Broker Services 670,767 24.2% 673,648 22.3%
Commercial Lending Services 1,258,920 45.6% 1,535,003 50.7%
Total mortgage principal $ 2,766,213 100.0% $ 3,026,941 100.0%

In the context of the market turbulence experienced over the course of the last 24 months, management communicated its explicit earlier
intention to maintain a slower pace in its Commercial Lending Services business and the commercial mortgage growth therein (in order to
improve capital ratios as well as overall investment returns on a risk-weighted basis) and to take a more conservative credit approach in its single
family and mixed-use businesses. However, during the latter half of 2009, Equitable Trust increased its sales efforts, within the context of
ongoing lending and risk management discipline, commensurate with improving real estate markets and the increasing comfort that
management has with credit conditions. These facts are evidenced in the funding results expressed in Table 7. The Company funded $2.3
billion of mortgages during 2009, on par with 2008. Consistent with the Company’s corporate objectives, the Company funded $397.7 million
through its Single Family Lending Services business during 2009, $167.2 of which was funded in the fourth quarter of the year. Through its
Commercial Mortgage – Broker Services business, the Company funded $105.7 million in mortgages in 2009 compared to $165.1 million in
2008. During 2009, the Company continued to focus its Commercial Lending Services business on those niches that offer the best potential
return, including CMHC-insured mortgages on multi-family apartment buildings. Commercial Lending Services originated a total of $1.8 billion
of mortgages during the year, comprised of $1.6 billion of CMHC-insured mortgages, $26.7 million of construction loans, and $139.1 million
of other conventional mortgages.
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Table 7: Mortgage production – by lending business

2009 2008
Mortgage Mortgage

($ THOUSANDS) principal funded % of total principal funded % of total Change from 2008

Single Family Lending Services $ 397,684 17.5% $ 609,887 26.1% $ (212,203) (34.8%)
Commercial Mortgage − Broker Services 105,690 4.7% 165,069 7.1% (59,379) (36.0%)
Commercial Lending Services:(1)

CMHC-insured multi-unit residential 1,603,357 70.5% 1,253,345 53.8% 350,012 27.9%
Conventional mortgages 165,806 7.3% 302,292 13.0% (136,486) (45.2%)

Total $ 2,272,537 100.0% $ 2,330,593 100.0% $ (58,056) (2.5%)

(1) Does not include $546,846 (2008 – $777,393) of advances related tomortgages held for sale warehouse facilities.

Table 8: Mortgages held for sale

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008

Principal balance, beginning of year $ 297,952 $ 272,370
Advances 546,846 777,393
Repayments and discharges (740,070) (751,811)
Principal balance, end of year $ 104,728 $ 297,952

Net change in principal balance $ (193,224) $ 25,582

The timing of advances and discharges on mortgages held for sale in warehoused mortgage facilities can lead to variability in those balances.
During 2009, $546.8 million of advances were made with respect to mortgages held for sale in those facilities. Much of these advances related
to CMHC-insured single family warehoused mortgages, in which Equitable continues to see good activity. Despite ongoing disruption in the
Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities market, exposure to commercial warehouse facilities was reduced by $82.4 million to $77.9 million
at December 31, 2009 from $160.3 million a year earlier. The Company achieved these reductions and was also successful in restructuring and
upwardly repricing certain of the facilities in this portfolio.
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Credit Quality and Allowance for Credit Losses

Table 9: Mortgage credit quality

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Credit quality measures:
Gross impaired mortgage principal $ 37,562 $ 39,631 $ 8,617 $ (2,069) (5.2%)
Allowance for credit losses 14,635 14,551 8,925 84 0.6%
Allowance for credit losses as a % of total mortgage principal 0.53% 0.48% 0.31%
Mortgage principal in arrears 90 days or more(1) 17,832 47,627 8,617 (29,795) (62.6%)
Mortgage principal in arrears 90 days or more as a % of total mortgage principal(1) 0.64% 1.57% 0.30%

Continuity of allowance for credit losses:
Balance, beginning of year $ 14,551 $ 8,925 $ 8,046
Provision charged to statement of income 6,600 3,450 900
Allowance for credit losses on acquired portfolio – 2,212 –
Recovery of prior losses 108 – 29
Realized losses deducted from allowance (6,624) (36) (50)
Balance, end of year $ 14,635 $ 14,551 $ 8,925

(1) Mortgage principal in arrears 90 days or more does not include CMHC-insuredmortgages that are less than 365 days in arrears.

Mortgage principal in arrears 90 days or more (excluding CMHC-insured mortgages that are less than 365 days in arrears) improved to 0.64% of
total principal outstanding at December 31, 2009 from 1.57% at December 31, 2008. The quarter-over-quarter consecutive improvement in this
ratio, which is the result of effective mortgage administration, default management and collections practices, also reflected a relative improvement
in real estate market conditions within Equitable’s lending regions over the course of the year. Mortgages that were in early stage delinquency,
between 30 to 89 days past due, increased from 0.54% of total outstanding principal at December 31, 2008 to 0.68% at December 31, 2009,
representing $18.7 million in principal. Management took the prudent step at the end of the third quarter to deem a $19.2 million residential
construction mortgage as being impaired, placing a $1.0 million specific allowance against this mortgage in the third quarter and a further $1.0
million allowance in the fourth quarter.The provisions taken reflect the increased credit risk that is associated with this mortgage and the respective
borrower. Notwithstanding the increased risk, the interest payments related to this mortgage were up-to-date at December 31, 2009. An
independent third party has assessed these properties as having the ability to cover the interest payments from future asset sales and concluded
that the outstanding loan balance is lower than certain current appraisals of the properties that secure the mortgage. Inclusion of this mortgage
in net impaired mortgages was the primary reason that the impaired mortgages were 1.20% of total mortgage principal at the end of 2009, only
slightly lower than the 1.21% reported at the end of 2008. Similarly, the provision for this mortgage resulted in an increased allowance for credit
losses as a percentage of total mortgage principal of 0.53% at December 31, 2009 compared to 0.48% reported at December 31, 2008.

Net realized loan losses of $6.5 million incurred during 2009 primarily related to the successful completion of loan workout activities disclosed
at the end of 2008. A total specific allowance for losses of $4.3 million was recorded as at December 31, 2009; 98.2% of this specific allowance
related to mortgages that are secured by properties located in Ontario, while 1.3% relates to Alberta and 0.5% to Quebec. By way of comparison,
91.5% of the Company’s gross impaired mortgages relate to Ontario, 7.1% to Alberta and 1.0% to Quebec. For further information, see Note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is actively managing its arrears portfolio and has had to foreclose on certain properties and cause certain properties to either
sell or discharge in order to ensure successful collection of the respective mortgage principal. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the
Company recognized $0.4 in losses related to foreclosure – none of which were incurred during the fourth quarter of the year. Net fair value
of real estate owned as a result of foreclosure was $2.5 million and related to nine remaining single family properties at December 31, 2009.
Real estate owned is recorded as held for sale at its net realizable value. Real estate owned at December 31, 2009 has been appraised by third
party consultants and the amounts recorded represent management’s best estimate of the proceeds to be received on sale. Effective collections
management and the improving health of real estate markets have allowed the Company to sell properties and work out problem loans in an
expeditious and effective manner, without incurring unreasonable losses.
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The quality of the Company’s mortgage portfolio continued to reflect the effectiveness and prudence of its underwriting during 2009. The
Company does not lend against uninsured mortgages at high loan-to-value ratios, thereby limiting its exposure to loss. As indicated above,
given improving real estate markets, increasing interest spreads and the increasing comfort that management has with credit conditions,
Equitable has increased its sales efforts. Management actively analyzes the profile of its originations in tandem with external market conditions,
including employment conditions. Where management judges that the commensurate risk associated with a particular region or product is
no longer acceptable, it adjusts its underwriting criteria to safeguard the future health of its portfolio. When appropriate, Equitable also
responds to the changing marketplace with initiatives that result in improved mortgage originations and which continue to ensure a prudent
credit risk profile for its portfolio. Management monitors the real estate markets in which it operates to assess the Company’s credit risk
exposure therein in order to re-evaluate its expectations and the potential need for an increase in general and specific credit loss provisions.

Liquidity Investments and Equity Securities

At December 31, 2009, assets held for the purpose of providing liquidity protection amounted to $763.6 million and consisted of $129.7 million
of Government of Canada Bonds that were purchased under reverse repurchase agreements, $238.1 million of MBS, also guaranteed by the
Government of Canada, and $395.8 million of cash held with major Canadian banks. Although the cost associated with maintaining excess
liquidity compresses net interest margin, management continues to believe that the maintenance of higher than normal levels of liquidity on
its balance sheet is a prudent measure, intended to insulate the Company’s business from unexpected and unforeseen events that may impact
liquidity during the current period of economic uncertainty in the Canadian and international capital markets.

Management closely monitors its liquidity position. Management believes that the liquid capital resources that the Company has at its disposal,
together with its ability to raise GIC deposits, are sufficient to meet the requirements of its funding commitments, as well as ensure the collection
of its receivables and the discharge of its liabilities and other obligations. Liquidity is used by the Company to manage its funding needs, which
include the funding of $318.9 million in mortgage commitments issued by the Company that were outstanding at December 31, 2009 ($94.4
million at December 31, 2008). Given the indications of relative stability that have returned to capital markets in recent months, management
has begun to slowly reduce the level of assets that are held for the purpose of providing liquidity protection. Nonetheless, the assets held to
provide liquidity protection amounted to 19.9% of Equitable Trust’s total assets at December 31, 2009, as compared to 20.1% at December 31,
2008. In addition to assets that are held for the purpose of providing liquidity protection, other liquid assets held by the Company include other
deposits held with the Company’s bank and the Company’s investment in preferred shares.

Equity securities in which the Company invests are comprised of preferred shares that are held to yield tax-preferred dividend income, which
are classified as available for sale assets for financial instrument accounting purposes. As such, unrealized changes in fair value on this portfolio
are included in the Company’s other comprehensive income. At December 31, 2009, equity securities were $53.2 million or 55.0% higher than
at December 31, 2008. The increased balance from December 31, 2008 resulted from a combination of sales, redemptions, purchases and the
change in unrealized losses in the market values of the preferred shares caused by volatility in Canadian stock markets. Total net unrealized
losses related to the equity portfolio as at December 31, 2009 amounted to $9.0 million compared to $30.5 million at December 31, 2008, as
a result of preferred share price increases that moderated previous declines in value. Tax-exempt dividend income from equity securities assists
in lowering the Company’s effective tax rate, which was 24.7% for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to the Company’s statutory
income tax rate of 32.4%. Unrealized changes in fair value on this portfolio affect Equitable Trust’s capital ratios.
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Table 10: Liquid assets

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Eligible deposits with regulated financial institutions(1) $ 395,784 $ 23,466 $ 15,705 $ 372,318 1,586.6%
Government guaranteed debt instruments:

Investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements 129,721 698,276 232,120 (568,555) (81.4%)
Debt securities issued by a Canadian Province or Government of Canada – 24,996 38,851 (24,996) (100.0%)
Debt securities guaranteed by Government of Canada 238,061 73,563 26,064 164,498 223.6%

Assets held for the purpose of providing liquidity protection 763,566 820,301 312,740 (56,735) (6.9%)
Other deposits with regulated financial institutions 51 1,659 222 (1,608) (96.9%)
Equity securities 149,976 96,758 155,782 53,218 55.0%

Total liquid assets $ 913,593 $ 918,718 $ 468,744 $ (5,125) (0.6%)

Total liquid assets as a % of total assets 23.8% 22.5% 13.7%
Total assets held for the purpose of providing liquidity protection as a % of

total Equitable Trust assets 19.9% 20.1% 9.2%

(1) Eligible deposits with regulated financial institutions represent deposits of Equitable Trust which are held with major Canadian banks and excludes $5.0 million (2008 – $8.4 million,
2007 – $5.0million) of restricted cash held as collateral by a third party for the Company’s interest rate swap transactions.

Securitization Retained Interests

The Company periodically securitizes mortgages primarily to diversify funding sources and enhance liquidity positions. The Company securitizes
CMHC-insured mortgages through the creation of MBS, and the ultimate sale of MBS through the CMB Program. Equitable either directly or
indirectly retains the responsibility for the servicing of the underlying mortgages. See Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements for the
accounting policy on securitization retained interests.

Securitization retained interests increased $45.4 million to $147.2 million at December 31, 2009 from $101.8 million at December 31, 2008. Total
mortgages in the CMHC MBS program outstanding at December 31, 2009 were $4.1 billion, a $1.3 billion increase from $2.8 billion outstanding
at December 31, 2008. Securitization retained interests represent the discounted future earnings to be received relating to the insured
mortgages securitized through the CMHC MBS Program. Securitization retained interests are presented gross of the estimated future servicing
liability included in other liabilities for securitizations entered into after July 1, 2001. For securitizations entered into prior to this date, the
servicing liability and the future excess interest spread are reported on a net basis. For further information, see Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, as well as and the “Critical Accounting Estimates” and “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Derivative Financial
Instruments” sections of this MD&A.

Deposit Liabilities

As a regulated CDIC member, Equitable Trust’s ability to fund its mortgage businesses by attracting depositors and providing excellent service
is critical to its business. Deposits, which are primarily in the form of GICs, provide a reliable and stable source of funding that can be properly
matched against mortgage maturities. Customer deposits are used to fund most of the Company’s liquidity needs, including asset acquisitions,
and consist of GIC deposits sourced primarily through a national distribution network of independent deposit agents. This has historically
been, and continues to be, a deep and liquid market.

Total deposit principal outstanding decreased $345.3 million or 9.5% to $3.3 billion at year end from $3.6 billion of the prior year. At year end,
cashable GICs represented 21.1% of total deposits outstanding versus 22.9% in 2008. The Company’s cashable GIC is a one-year product,
cashable after its initial 30-day term at any time upon demand. Other GIC products consist of 30-day to five-year fixed term GICs. Equitable Trust
is licensed to accept deposits in all Canadian jurisdictions.
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Table 11: Deposits

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Cashable GIC deposits $ 688,782 $ 826,438 $ 710,194 $ (137,656) (16.7%)
Fixed-term GIC deposits 2,582,186 2,789,869 2,330,040 (207,683) (7.4%)
Accrued interest on deposits 71,798 85,363 72,507 (13,565) (15.9%)
Deferred deposit agent commissions (10,447) (9,101) (8,217) (1,346) 14.8%
Total $ 3,332,319 $ 3,692,569 $ 3,104,524 $ (360,250) (9.8%)

Subordinated Debentures and BankTerm Loans

Subordinated debentures are subordinated to the rights of Equitable Trust’s depositors and other creditors. Such debentures form an integral
part of regulatory capital. Subordinated debentures are issued for a period of 10 years. The Company can elect to redeem these debentures
during their term subject to the approval of OSFI. During the first nine months of 2009, $3.8 million of Series 5 subordinated debentures
(“Series 5”) held by the Company was redeemed in separate transactions. As part of these transactions the Company repaid $3.8 million of its
bank term loans.

In December 2009, the Company issued $23.2 million in Series 8 subordinated debentures (“Series 8”), a new class of subordinated debt.
Equitable Trust concurrently redeemed the remaining $30.8 million of its Series 5, $13.3 million of which was held by the Company. As part of
this transaction, the Company repaid $13.3 million of its bank term loans. The gross proceeds of the offering of the Series 8 were used by the
Company to purchase subordinated debentures of Equitable Trust, which qualify as Tier 2B regulatory capital and will, in turn, be used for
general corporate purposes. The Series 8 will pay fixed interest semi-annually for the first five years of its 10-year term, and then bear a floating
interest rate that is calculated at the 90-day Banker’s Acceptance Rate plus 480 basis points thereafter.

The Company is in compliance with all of the covenants required by its bank loan facility.

Table 12: Subordinated debentures and bank term loans

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Subordinated debentures
Series 5 7.31% – 7.58% $ – $ 17,519 $ 17,519 $ (17,519) (100.0%)
Series 6 7.27% 5,000 5,000 5,000 – –%
Series 7 7.10% 9,450 9,450 9,450 – –%
Series 8 6.50% 23,221 – – 23,221 N/A
Total subordinated debentures $ 37,671 $ 31,969 $ 31,969 $ 5,702 17.8%

Bank term loans
6.37% $ – $ 17,095 $ 17,095 $ (17,095) (100.0%)
6.82% 15,000 15,000 15,000 – –%
6.41% 12,500 12,500 12,500 – –%

Total bank term loans $ 27,500 $ 44,595 $ 44,595 $ (17,095) (38.3%)
Total subordinated debentures and bank term loans $ 65,171 $ 76,564 $ 76,564 $ (11,393) (14.9%)
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Other Assets, Future IncomeTaxes and Other Liabilities

Other assets decreased $18.3 million or 51.5% to $17.3 million from $35.6 million a year earlier. Other assets include fair value on derivative
financial instruments, income taxes recoverable, real estate held for sale, capital assets consisting of leasehold improvements, office furniture
and computer equipment and sundry receivables and prepaid expenses. During the year, items affecting this aggregate balance included a
$7.4 million reduction in income taxes recoverable, much of which related to a reversal of unrealized losses in the Company’s preferred share
portfolio and a $14.5 million reduction in unrealized interest rate swap mark-to-market balances, offset by a $2.6 million increase in the value
of other derivative financial instruments and a $2.5 million increase in real estate owned.

Other liabilities include the future servicing liability of securitized mortgages, realty taxes collected from borrowers, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, and the fair value of derivative financial instruments. Securitized mortgage servicing liability relates to the Company’s
estimate of the future cost of servicing the mortgages that have been previously securitized.

Future income taxes payable result from differences between the measurement of assets and liabilities for financial statement purposes versus
measurement for tax purposes. A large portion of future taxes relates to the Company’s securitization activities net of its general allowance
for credit losses. On a year-over-year basis, future income taxes increased primarily as a result of future taxes that will be paid by the Company
on the residual cash flows that will be received in future periods from its loan securitizations.

Table 13: Other assets, future income taxes and other liabilities

($ THOUSANDS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Other assets:
Other receivables and prepaids $ 5,434 $ 6,334 $ 3,586 $ (900) (14.2%)
Income taxes recoverable 4,187 11,588 3,382 (7,401) (63.9%)
Real estate owned 2,518 – – 2,518 N/A
Derivative financial instruments – securitization activities 2,358 – – 2,358 N/A
Capital assets 2,211 2,536 2,857 (325) (12.8%)
Derivative financial instruments – interest rate swaps 294 14,836 539 (14,542) (98.0%)
Derivative financial instruments – hedges 264 – – 264 N/A
Mortgage commitments – 296 63 (296) (100.0%)
Total $ 17,266 $ 35,590 $ 10,427 $ (18,324) (51.5%)

Future income taxes and other liabilities:
Securitized mortgage servicing liability $ 40,606 $ 19,945 $ 5,953 $ 20,661 103.6%
Future income taxes 19,999 17,839 7,945 2,160 12.1%
Mortgagor realty taxes 10,317 9,048 6,616 1,269 14.0%
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,787 3,505 2,858 282 8.0%
Mortgage commitments 14 – – 14 N/A
Derivative financial instruments – securitization activities – 3,527 1,996 (3,527) (100.0%)
Derivative financial instruments – hedges – 408 – (408) (100.0%)
Total $ 74,723 $ 54,272 $ 25,368 $ 20,451 37.7%
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Shareholders’ Equity

Total shareholders’equity increased $109.7 million or 41.5% to $373.9 million at December 31, 2009 from $264.1 million at December 31, 2008.

In 2009, the Company issued 2.0 million non-cumulative 5-year rate reset Series 1 preferred shares at a price of $25.00 per share for gross
proceeds of $50.0 million. The Company used the proceeds from the offering to acquire non-cumulative 5-year rate reset Series 1 preferred
shares from Equitable Trust, which qualify as Tier 1 regulatory capital for Equitable Trust. The Series 1 preferred shares yield 7.25% annually,
payable quarterly as and when declared by the Board of Directors for an initial period ending September 30, 2014. Thereafter, the dividend
rate will reset every five years at a level of 4.53% over the then five-year Government of Canada bond yield.

Subject to regulatory approval, the Company may redeem all or part of the outstanding Series 1 shares, at its option, without the consent of
the holder, by payment in cash of $25.00 per share with all declared and unpaid dividends on September 30, 2014 and on September 30 every
five years thereafter.

Holders of Series 1 preferred shares, subject to certain conditions, have the option to convert their shares to non-cumulative floating rate
Series 2 preferred shares on September 30, 2014 and on the fifth anniversary thereafter. Holders of the Series 2 preferred shares will be entitled
to a floating quarterly dividend rate equal to the 90-day Canadian Treasury Bill Rate plus 4.53%, as and when declared by the Board.

In 2008, the Company issued 1.9 million common shares at a price of $21.50 per share for gross proceeds of $40.9 million. Included in this
issuance were 1.7 million common shares issued by public offering and 0.2 million common shares issued under private placement to
Emberwood Glen Enterprise Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oakwest Corporation Limited, whose controlling shareholders are directors of
the Company. The Company used the proceeds, after deducting certain underwriting, legal and other expenses, to invest $38.9 million in the
equity of Equitable Trust, in order to augment its Tier 1 regulatory capital base and support its continued growth, as well as for general corporate
purposes.

On March 4, 2009, the Company announced the introduction of a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (“DRIP”). Participation in the plan is optional
and under the terms of the plan, cash dividends on common shares are used to purchase additional common shares at the volume weighted
average trading price of the common shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the dividend
payment date. Common shares issued as a result of participation in the DRIP are issued from the Company’s treasury. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, 11,136 common shares were issued under the DRIP.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had 14,903,846 common shares issued and outstanding compared to 14,882,710 common shares issued
and outstanding at December 31, 2008. During 2009, 172,000 options were granted and 10,000 stock options were exercised that contributed
$0.2 million to common share capital. At December 31, 2009, there were 814,750 unexercised stock options, which are or will be exercisable,
to purchase 814,750 common shares for maximum proceeds of $19.3 million.

The Company paid an annual dividend of $0.40 per common share in 2009, consistent with the dividend paid in 2008. At the date of this
report, the Company has 14,909,743 common shares issued and outstanding.

The Company paid the initial dividend on the Series 1 preferred shares on December 31, 2009, which was $0.605822 per share.
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Table 14: Shareholders’ equity

($ THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2009 2008 2007 Change from 2008

Shareholders’equity:
Preferred shares $ 48,523 $ – $ – $ 48,523 N/A
Common shares 127,424 126,993 87,062 431 0.3%
Contributed surplus 3,267 2,553 1,778 714 28.0%
Retained earnings 193,635 149,365 116,325 44,270 29.6%
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1,012 (14,765) (1,995) 15,777 106.9%
Total shareholders’equity $ 373,861 $ 264,146 $ 203,170 $ 109,715 41.5%

Dividends on common shares $ 5,956 $ 5,571 5,081 $ 385 6.9%
Dividends per common share $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ 0.40 $ – –%
Dividends on preferred shares $ 1,212 $ – – $ 1,212 N/A
Dividends per preferred share $ 0.61 $ – – $ 0.61 N/A

Capital Management

Equitable Trust manages its capital in accordance with guidelines established by OSFI, based on standards issued by the Bank for International
Settlements, Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel II”). In order to determine prudent capital levels and govern the quality and
quantity of capital necessary to maintain the business based on its inherent risks, Equitable Trust utilizes an Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (“ICAAP”).

The Company has been successful in shifting its business to lower risk-weighted assets and in retaining its earnings. Equitable Trust’s total
capital ratio (when general allowance is included in capital) increased by 410 basis points to 17.6% at December 31, 2009 from 13.5% at
December 31, 2008. Equitable Trust’s Tier 1 regulatory capital position was significantly stronger at December 31, 2009 at 14.6% compared to
10.1% at December 31, 2008. As at December 31, 2009, tangible common equity was 12.6% as compared to 10.1% one year earlier. Tangible
common equity ratio (a non-GAAP measure) is defined as shareholder’s equity plus any qualifying other non-controlling interest in subsidiaries
less preferred shares issued and outstanding, any goodwill, other intangible assets and certain components of accumulated other
comprehensive income, as a percentage of risk-adjusted assets less other intangible assets. Tangible common equity ratio is considered by
management and many investors and investment analysts to be a key measure of capital strength. This ratio is particularly strong compared
to that of the Canadian chartered banks, which themselves are regarded as well-capitalized by international standards.

Equitable Trust is positioned to maintain strong capital levels through the retention of earnings and the management of its risk-weighted
asset mix. As the need arises, the Company also intends to investigate opportunities that will allow it to raise non-dilutive forms of additional
capital.
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Table 15: Capital measures (relating solely to Equitable Trust)

($ THOUSANDS) December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008 January 1, 2008

Risk weighted assets:
Credit risk $ 2,355,526 $ 2,423,996 $ 2,510,966
Operational risk(1) 154,352 125,086 100,724

Total risk-weighted assets $ 2,509,878 $ 2,549,082 $ 2,611,690

Tier 1 capital:
Common shares $ 129,337 $ 128,162 $ 87,621
Non-cumulative preferred shares 50,000 – –
Contributed surplus 2,852 2,138 1,363
Retained earnings 189,715 146,901 114,645
Accumulated other comprehensive loss(2) (5,953) (20,330) (2,982)

Total 365,951 256,871 200,647

Tier 2 capital:
Subordinated debentures (Tier 2B)(3) 65,171 76,564 76,564

Total 65,171 76,564 76,564

Total regulatory capital $ 431,122 $ 333,435 $ 277,211

Regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets:
Tier 1 capital 14.6% 10.1% 7.7%
Tier 2 capital 2.6% 3.0% 2.9%

Total regulatory capital as a % of total risk-weighted assets 17.2% 13.1% 10.6%

Total capital calculated as defined under ICAAP:
Total regulatory capital $ 431,122 $ 333,434 $ 277,211
General allowance(4) 10,339 11,651 8,775

Total capital as defined under ICAAP $ 441,461 $ 345,085 $ 285,986

Total capital ratio for ICAAP purposes 17.6% 13.5% 11.0%

(1) For operational risk, Equitable Trust uses the Basic Indicator Approach – calculated as 15% of the previous three-year average of net interest income and other income, excluding gain or
loss on investments. The risk-weighted equivalent is determined bymultiplying the capital requirement for operational risk by 12.5.

(2) As prescribed by OSFI, certain components of accumulated other comprehensive income are included in the determination of regulatory capital. Net unrealized fair value losses on
available for sale equity securities are deducted in the determination of Tier 1 capital while net unrealized fair value gains on available for sale equity securities are included in Tier 2A capital.

(3) Tier 2B capital may be included in Tier 2 capital to amaximum of 50% of net Tier 1 capital.
(4) Equitable Trust includes its general allowance in capital when assessing its capital requirements under its ICAAP.
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Summary of Quarterly Results

Table 16 summarizes the Company’s performance over the last eight quarters. Equitable does not expect material seasonality in its earnings,
but changes in short-term interest rates and volumes of mortgages securitized may cause some volatility in earnings from quarter to quarter
as described elsewhere in this MD&A.

Table 16: Summary of quarterly results

2009 2008
SHEET ITEMS AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS) Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

OPERATIONS
Net income 15,572 12,045 11,877 11,944 7,894 10,752 10,280 9,685
EPS – basic $ 0.96 $ 0.81 $ 0.80 $ 0.80 $ 0.53 $ 0.74 $ 0.79 $ 0.75
EPS – diluted $ 0.96 $ 0.81 $ 0.80 $ 0.80 $ 0.53 $ 0.74 $ 0.79 $ 0.74
Net interest income 21,113 19,547 17,503 15,006 14,862 16,398 15,473 17,610
Net interest margin – TEB 2.4% 2.2% 1.9% 1.6% 1.5% 1.7% 1.8% 2.2%
Total revenues 50,891 50,748 50,758 55,427 56,613 61,488 55,852 52,813
Return on equity – annualized 17.9% 15.7% 16.5% 17.8% 11.8% 16.7% 19.1% 18.8%
Return on average assets – annualized 1.6% 1.3% 1.3% 1.2% 0.8% 1.1% 1.2% 1.1%
Productivity ratio – TEB 25.1% 25.7% 24.4% 24.3% 32.7% 24.9% 26.8% 26.0%
Conventional mortgage production 272,168 197,338 139,557 60,117 174,059 355,907 350,106 197,176
CMHC-insured multi-unit residential production 368,419 257,144 505,762 472,032 260,209 450,881 439,611 102,644
Mortgages held for sale warehouse advances 65,144 126,122 85,483 270,097 356,776 170,105 180,054 70,458

BALANCE SHEET AND
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ($ millions)

Total assets 3,846 3,688 3,719 3,889 4,088 4,094 3,814 3,368
Mortgages receivable 2,763 2,829 2,857 2,895 3,023 3,036 2,916 2,811
Shareholders’equity 374 359 297 281 264 268 221 212
Book value per common share $ 21.83 $ 20.86 $ 19.94 $ 18.90 $ 17.75 $ 17.98 $ 17.03 $ 16.35
Mortgage backed security

assets under administration 4,093 3,792 3,537 3,232 2,825 2,629 2,285 1,970

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

($ THOUSANDS, EXCEPT BALANCE SHEET AND OFF-BALANCE



EQ
UI
TA
BL
EG

RO
UP

IN
C.

32

Fourth Quarter Overview

During the three months ended December 31, 2009:

• net income was $15.6 million, an increase of 97.3% from the fourth quarter of 2008;

• diluted earnings per share were $0.96 compared to $0.81 in the immediately preceding quarter and $0.53 in the fourth quarter of 2008;
and

• ROE was 17.9% compared to 11.8% in the fourth quarter of 2008.

In terms of the lines of business it operates, during the quarter:

• Single Family Lending Services production was $167.2 million, or 63.1% higher than the $102.5 million of the corresponding period of 2008;

• Commercial Mortgage – Broker Services production increased to $42.6 million compared to $16.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2008; and

• Commercial Lending Services production was $430.7 million, compared to $314.9 million in the fourth quarter of 2008. Of the 2009 fourth
quarter production, $368.4 million related to CMHC-insured multi-unit residential mortgages that were originated for the purpose of being
securitized and sold to government sponsored programs, compared to $260.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2008.

During the fourth quarter, the balance of average interest-earning assets was $3.6 billion, down 9.0% from $4.0 billion in the same period a
year ago. As a result of this, as well as lower interest lending rates, mortgage interest income decreased 10.7% to $40.9 million compared to
$45.9 million a year earlier. Nonetheless, net interest income increased $6.3 million or 42.1% from the same quarter a year ago, primarily due
to reductions in funding costs, as well as the effect of implementing interest rate floors on variable rate mortgages and improved pricing on
new and renewing mortgages in earlier quarters of 2009.

The Company held a larger proportion of its liquidity in the form of Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities in 2009, during a period
that interest rates have significantly decreased, whereas its liquidity position was primarily held in the form of other short-term investments
during significant periods of the prior year. Interest on Government guaranteed debt securities is reported as interest income – investments.
Since the interest income related to other short-tem investments is reported under interest income – other, this income balance experienced
a significant year-over-year reduction.

Other income increased $2.3 million or 68.8% during the fourth quarter of 2009, primarily as a result of a $1.7 million increase in securitization
gains. During the quarter, the Company securitized and sold $344.9 of mortgages compared $281.0 in the corresponding quarter of 2008.

Non-interest expenses increased $0.8 million in the fourth quarter compared to the same quarter of 2008. As a component of non-interest
expenses, compensation costs for the quarter increased $0.5 million or 14.1% reflecting higher staffing levels during the quarter compared to
the corresponding period of 2008.

Income tax expense was affected by downward adjustments made during the quarter in relation to lower future tax rates that were enacted
in Ontario as well an annual recalibration of the increased amount of business that the Company carried out in Alberta, which bears a lower
tax rate than Ontario.

At December 31, 2009, book value per share was $21.83 compared to $17.75 at the close of the prior year.
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Table 17: Unaudited interim consolidated statements of income – fourth quarters 2009 and 2008

For the three months ended
($ THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS) December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Interest income:
Mortgages $ 40,939 $ 45,855
Investments 3,701 2,119
Other 614 5,300

45,254 53,274
Interest expense:

Customer deposits 20,651 35,243
Deposit agent commissions 1,965 1,825
Bank term loans 972 754
Subordinated debentures 553 590

24,141 38,412
Net interest income 21,113 14,862
Provision for credit losses 2,250 1,550
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 18,863 13,312
Other income:

Fees and other income 706 526
Net gain (loss) on investments 14 (453)
Gains on securitization activities and income from retained interests 4,917 3,266

5,637 3,339
Net interest income and other income 24,500 16,651
Non-interest expenses:

Compensation and benefits 4,133 3,622
Other 2,888 2,585

7,021 6,207
Income before income taxes 17,479 10,444
Income taxes (recovery):

Current 1,327 (1,271)
Future 580 3,821

1,907 2,550
Net income 15,572 7,894
Dividends on preferred shares 1,212 –
Net income available to common shareholders $ 14,360 $ 7,894

Earnings per share:
Basic $ 0.96 $ 0.53
Diluted $ 0.96 $ 0.53

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 14,897,076 14,882,710
Diluted 14,969,290 14,882,710
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Table 18: Unaudited interim consolidated statements of comprehensive income – fourth quarters 2009 and 2008

For the three months ended
($ THOUSANDS) December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Net income $ 15,572 $ 7,894
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Available for sale investments:
Net unrealized gains (losses) from change in fair value(1) 2,397 (9,929)
Reclassification of net gains to income(2) (970) (168)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,427 (10,097)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 16,999 $ (2,203)

(1) Net of income tax expense of $1,149 (2008 – tax benefit of $4,955).
(2) Net of income tax benefit of $465 (2008 – tax benefit of $84).
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Table 19: Unaudited interim consolidated statements of cash flows – fourth quarters 2009 and 2008

For the three months ended
($ THOUSANDS) December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:

Net income $ 15,572 $ 7,894
Non-cash items:

Financial instruments - fair value adjustments (2,168) (4,616)
Securitization gains (4,131) (2,108)
Amortization of capital assets 161 215
Provision for credit losses 2,250 1,550
Net (gain) loss on investments (27) 195
Future income taxes 580 4,519
Stock-based compensation 161 208
Amortization of premiums on investments, net 255 184

12,653 8,041
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other assets (4,016) (2,768)
Other liabilities (1,642) 3,829

6,995 9,102
Financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 145,417 (24,625)
Repayment of bank term loan (13,284) –
Issuance of subordinated debentures 23,221 –
Redemption of subordinated debentures (17,519) –
Dividends paid on preferred shares (1,212) –
Dividends paid on common shares (1,299) (1,488)
Preferred share issuance expenses (76) –
Issuance of common shares 104 (698)

135,352 (26,811)
Investing activities:

Purchase of investments (215,521) –
Proceeds on sale or redemption of investments 199,781 8,602
Purchase of investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements (129,721) (698,276)
Proceeds on sale or redemption of investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements 126,230 748,183
Change in restricted cash 3,070 (3,422)
Increase in mortgages receivable (713,019) (803,587)
Mortgage principal repayments 368,031 516,323
Proceeds from loan securitizations 348,011 282,998
Securitization retained interests 7,892 6,318
Purchase of capital assets (81) (294)

(5,327) 56,845
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 137,020 39,136
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 258,815 10,985
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 395,835 $ 50,121
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies are essential to an understanding of its reported results of operations and financial position. A
summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is presented in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Future Accounting Changes

International Financial Reporting Standards:

Canadian Public Companies are required to prepare their financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. Equitable
will transition to IFRS on this date.

In order to meet the transition requirements, management has developed a project plan that is arranged according to the following phases:

• Impact assessment of IFRS

• Requirements gathering, detailed review of IFRS and adoption planning

• Results delivery (selection of IFRS policies)

• Training and communication

• Refinement or updating of policy selection choices (for IFRS changes that are instituted prior to 2011)

The major differences identified, as applicable to the Company, between IFRS and Canadian GAAP are as follows:

• Certain financial assets that previously qualified for derecognition on transfer are expected to be re-recognized under IFRS. This would
result in an adjustment to retained earnings intended to unwind the previously reported impact of all securitization transactions since
January 1, 2004, and retroactively re-recognize the assets that were previously considered to have been sold as amortizing assets that
continue to reside on the Company’s balance sheet, earning spread interest income over the course of their term.

• Changes are expected to the impairment methodology followed by the Company in order to meet the requirements of IFRS. More emphasis
will be placed on objective evidence of loss events and historical loss events and the extrapolation thereof to the entire portfolio. The
amount of the impairment allowance is not expected to differ materially.

• Additional disclosure is required on transition for the first IFRS compliant financial statements per IFRS 1 “First Time Adoption of IFRS.” As a
result, transition reconciliations will be prepared for both the March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2011 financial statements.

• Additional and enhanced disclosure as required by IFRS to enable users to further understand the transactions and circumstances that
affect the Company during the reporting period.

Pursuant to the re-recognition of securitized assets, discussed above, an area of significant anticipated IFRS impact relates to the Company’s
past securitization activities. Under the current IFRS regime and a recent draft advisory that has been tabled for discussion with federally
regulated entities by OSFI that deals with the regulatory implications of IFRS conversion on regulatory capital, the Company anticipates being
required to include its CMB and MBS securitization activities entered into after December 31, 2009 within its regulatory assets-to-capital
multiple (“ACM”) limit. Prior to converting to IFRS, mortgage assets securitized through the CMB and MBS programs have been held off-balance
sheet and have therefore not been included in this multiple. In March 2009, the IASB published an exposure draft to replace the requirements
in International Accounting Standard (“IAS”) 39 Financial Instruments: RecognitionandMeasurement and to improve the disclosure requirements
in IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the transfer of financial assets and liabilities. Several approaches to the issue of
derecognition were proposed as part of this exposure draft. Recently, the IASB has issued commentary that it is tentatively pursuing the
alternative approach proposed in the exposure draft and that it is their intention to further develop this approach in accounting for retained
interests. Although this approach, as proposed, may impact whether certain of the Company’s securitization activities will remain off-balance
sheet and, as such, not impact Equitable Trust’s ACM, there is no certainty related to the final outcome.
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Equitable is on schedule with its IFRS transition plan, having completed the requirements gathering, detailed planning and results delivery
phases of the project. Although accounting policy choices are based on current standards issued by the IASB, various standards that are
applicable to Equitable may be amended through current projects being undertaken by the IASB. The Company is continuing its training and
review efforts to ensure that any of the revisions applicable are identified in a timely manner to facilitate a smooth transition.

The table that follows is a status assessment of the Company’s progress on its plan to transition to IFRS, as at December 31, 2009.

Table 20: Status of transition to IFRS at December 31, 2009

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key activity or milestone Planned completion date Status

Financial Statement Preparation
Identification of differences in Canadian GAAP/ IFRS accounting
policies and IFRS policy selection:
• Identify differences in Canadian GAAP/ IFRS policies
• Select ongoing IFRS accounting policies
• Select IFRS 1 exemptions and exceptions (at transition)
• Develop financial statement format
• Quantify effects of transition to IFRS

Second quarter, 2009
Fourth quarter, 2009
Fourth quarter, 2009
Second quarter, 2010
First quarter, 2010

• Complete
• Complete
• Complete
• Significant progress made, on schedule
• Significant progress made, on schedule

Infrastructure
IFRS expertise identification and development at levels of:
• Accounting staff
• Senior Executives and Board (including audit committee)

Fourth quarter, 2009
Second quarter, 2010

• Training program complete, updates as required
• Training plan on schedule

Information Technology applications IFRS compliant:
• Program upgrades /changes
• One off calculations (IFRS 1)
• Gathering data for disclosures

Third quarter, 2009
Fourth quarter, 2009
Fourth quarter, 2009

• Impact assessment complete, areas identified
• Infrastructure assessment complete
• Infrastructure assessment complete

Business Policy Assessment
Financial covenants:
• Identify impacts on financial covenants (including securitization)
• Complete any required renegotiations /changes

Compensation arrangements:
• Identify if arrangements are affected
• Renegotiate arrangements if required

Capital adequacy:
• Assess impact on capital plan
• Amend capital plan if required

First quarter, 2010
Second quarter, 2010

First quarter, 2010
Third quarter, 2010

First quarter, 2010
Second quarter, 2010

• Impact assessment complete, on schedule
• Impact assessment complete, on schedule

• Impact assessment to be completed
• Impact assessment to be completed

• Significant progress made, on schedule
• Significant progress made, on schedule

Control Environment
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
• For all accounting policy changes identified, assess Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting design effectiveness
• Implement appropriate changes

Disclosure controls and procedures:
• For all accounting policy changes identified, publish impact

of conversion on key performance indicators in MD&A
• MD&A communications package verification

Third quarter, 2010
Fourth quarter, 2010

Third quarter, 2010
First quarter, 2011

• Impact assessment to be completed
• Impact assessment to be completed

• Impact assessment to be completed
• Impact assessment to be completed
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Critical Accounting Estimates

The Company’s critical accounting estimates primarily relate to the areas of credit risk, allowance for credit losses and valuation of securitization
retained interests and other financial instruments. The policies and methodologies used to determine these estimates and their significance
to the Company’s financial condition have been outlined in this MD&A and in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The allowance for credit losses reflects management’s best estimate of probable losses in the Company’s mortgage portfolio as at the
consolidated balance sheet date. In order to assess the likelihood of a loss, management takes into consideration a broad range of information,
including economic factors, developments affecting particular property types and geographic areas, the age of a mortgage and specific issues
with respect to individual borrowers. Changes in any of these factors may cause future assessment of credit risk to be significantly different
from current assessments and could affect the level of allowance for credit losses being maintained by the Company. The Company’s general
allowance for credit losses of $10.3 million as at December 31, 2009 represented 0.37% of total mortgage principal outstanding.

The Company uses estimates in valuing retained interests in loan securitizations. This valuation and changes thereto affect the gain on sale of
mortgages in a securitization and could affect the measurement of excess interest spread, net of servicing fees. Management uses its best
estimates in determining the value of retained interests on each securitization, taking into account current interest rates, the terms of the
mortgages being sold, the propensity for prepayment and the cost of the future mortgage servicing. On a quarterly basis, management
reassesses its estimates to ensure that these estimates are still valid under the current economic environment. Management uses historical data
to support any amendments to its estimation methodology and the carrying value of securitization retained interests. A sensitivity analysis of
two adverse changes in the estimate used to value the Company’s retained interests in loan securitizations is presented in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company hedges the interest rate risk on CMHC-insured multi-unit residential mortgages and mortgage commitments intended for
securitization, as well as certain other mortgages designated as held for trading. In order to protect against rises in interest rates that can occur
between the rate commitment date and the sale date, which can lead to a reduced value of the mortgage upon securitization, the Company
enters into Government of Canada guaranteed debt security short sale and repurchase agreements. The hedges act to significantly reduce the
likelihood that, as a result of interest rate movements, the proceeds on the sale of the mortgage (comprised of the fair value of the mortgage
and the fair value of hedge) will vary from the fair value of the mortgage at the date of rate commitment.

The Company securitizes CMHC-insured residential mortgages through the creation of MBS. These MBS are sold through the CMHC MBS and
CMB Programs or are otherwise retained on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. After securitization, the Company retains the rights
to certain excess interest spreads and servicing obligations and records these on its consolidated balance sheet as securitization retained
interests and servicing liabilities, respectively. The Company administers all securitized mortgages after sale and, upon maturity of the
mortgage, will renew these mortgage loans whenever possible. At December 31, 2009, the outstanding securitized mortgage portfolio totaled
$4.1 billion (2008 – $2.8 billion) with a securitization retained interest of $147.2 million (2008 – $101.8 million). The servicing liability was
$40.6 million (2008 – $19.9 million) at December 31, 2009.

In order to participate in the CMB Program administered by Canada Housing Trust (“CHT”), the Company enters into certain arrangements
with accredited counterparties that are intended to secure the cash flows payable to the CHT. The mismatch and reinvestment risk that exists
between the amortizing MBS and the CMB is managed by the Company through the retention of replacement assets, in the form of MBS, on
its consolidated balance sheet, and their periodic sale to CHT to replace the original MBS that has amortized. Approved counterparties are
limited to chartered banks and other financial intermediaries.

With respect to market interest rate exposure on term GICs to fund floating rate mortgages, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage
its interest rate risk as required. The Company has not entered into any complex derivative contracts. For more information on hedges and
interest rate swaps see Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Contractual Obligations

Material contractual obligations of the Company at December 31, 2009 are outlined in Table 21.

Table 21: Contractual obligations

Payments due by period
($ THOUSANDS) Total Less than 1 year 1 – 3 years 4 – 5 years After 5 years

GIC principal and interest $ 3,489,892 $ 2,036,110 $ 1,100,350 $ 353,432 $ –
Subordinated debentures principal and interest(1) 63,616 2,544 5,088 5,088 50,896
Bank term loans principal and interest 30,592 1,824 28,768 – –
Operating leases(2) 3,383 575 1,092 1,144 572
Total contractual obligations $ 3,587,483 $ 2,041,053 $ 1,135,298 $ 359,664 $ 51,468

(1) Obligations do not include any pre-maturity redemptions relating to Equitable Trust’s prior year’s net income.
(2) Represents minimum lease payments for premises rental.

In addition to these contractual obligations, the Company is responsible for ongoing servicing for mortgages securitized through the CMHC
MBS Program. This obligation is discussed in“Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Derivative Financial Instruments”section of this MD&A and
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009. Details related to the Company’s bank term loans can
be found in Note 12 and details related to the Company’s subordinated debentures can be found in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. There have been no material changes to contractual obligations that are outside the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

Related Party Transactions

Certain of the Company’s directors and officers have purchased GICs and subordinated debentures from the Company in the ordinary course
of business, at market terms and conditions.

RiskManagement

The Company, like other financial institutions, is exposed to the symptoms and effects of global economic conditions and other factors that
could adversely affect its business, financial condition and operating results, which may also influence an investor to buy, sell or hold shares
in the Company. Many of these risk factors are beyond the Company’s direct control. Senior management is responsible for identifying risks
and developing an appropriate risk management framework. The Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board play an active role in
monitoring the Company’s key risks and in determining the policies that are best suited to manage these risks.

The discussion below highlights certain key risks. For additional discussion of the risks that affect this business, please refer to pages 18 to 25
of the Company’s Final Short Form Prospectus dated August 24, 2009, which is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. The Company cautions
that the discussion of risks set out below is not exhaustive.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the possibility that Equitable will not receive the full value of amounts and recovery costs owed to it if counterparties
fail to honor their obligations to the Company.

Equitable Trust’s focus is on providing first mortgages on real estate. All mortgages are individually evaluated by underwriters using internal
and external credit risk assessment tools and are assigned a risk rating, in accordance with the level of credit risk attributed to each loan. The
underwriting approach places a strong emphasis on security evaluation and judgmental analysis of the risks in the transaction rather than being
formulaic in nature. As a result, Equitable Trust can underwrite mortgages on favorable terms to borrowers who have good equity and debt
service ratios in situations where conventional lenders may typically decline borrowers.
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Key components of credit risk that are closely monitored and measured are credit concentration risk and the risk associated with economically-
sensitive assets. By way of definition, credit concentration risk results if an unduly large proportion of the Company’s lending business involves
a single person, organization or group of related persons or organizations, a single geographic area, a single industry or a single category of
investment. On a regular basis, management establishes credit limits for exposure to certain counterparties, industries or market segments,
monitors these credit exposures, and prepares detailed analyses and reports assessing overall credit risk within the mortgage portfolio.

The Company also invests in preferred share securities to generate returns that meet an acceptable ROE hurdle threshold. These securities
represent a potential source of liquidity to the Company. However, such investments expose the Company to credit risk if the issuer of the
preferred shares cannot make dividend payments, or in the worst case scenario, if the issuer becomes insolvent.

Securities rated P-2 and higher comprised 61.9% of the preferred share equity securities portfolio at December 31, 2009, compared to 75.6%
a year earlier. This year-over-year decrease related to the rating downgrade of a group of connected preferred securities and the net redemption
in 2009 of $7.8 million of securities rated P-2 and higher.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the possibility that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the Company’s financial condition.
Interest rate risk may be affected if an unduly large proportion of the Company’s assets or liabilities have unmatched terms, interest rates or
other attributes.

The Company’s primary method of managing interest rate risk involves the matching of asset and liability maturity profiles, closely monitoring
interest rates and acting upon any mismatch in a timely manner to ensure that any sudden or prolonged change in interest rates does not
significantly affect the Company’s net interest income.

The Company uses simulated interest rate change sensitivity models to estimate the effects of various interest rate change scenarios on the
economic value of shareholders’ equity and on net interest income for the 12 months following the measurement date. Certain assumptions
that are based on actual experience are built into the simulations, including assumptions related to the pre-maturity redemptions of cashable
GICs and early payouts of mortgages.

Management’s sensitivity modeling indicates that in the event of an immediate and sustained 1% interest rate increase, net interest income
during the 12-month period following December 31, 2009 would increase by $3.9 million. Conversely, if interest rates were to decrease to a
floor of 0% (and therefore not be allowed to go negative), net interest income would increase by $0.2 million.

The Company hedges the interest rate risk for all multi-unit residential mortgages that are to be securitized through the CMHC MBS Program.
Hedging protects the Company from losses due to changes in interest rates during the relevant period.

The Company also holds replacement assets in the form of MBS in order to reduce the interest rate risk and replacement asset exposure
inherent in its participation in the CMB Program.

The Company’s earnings are affected by changes in interest rates. The estimate of sensitivity to interest rate changes is dependent on a number
of assumptions that could result in a difference in actual outcomes in the event of an actual interest rate change.

Funding Risk

Funding or liquidity risk is defined as the possibility that the Company will be unable to generate or obtain sufficient cash or its equivalents in a
timely manner, at a reasonable price, to meet its commitments as they come due. Funding risk may be affected if an unduly large proportion of
the Company’s deposit-taking business is concentrated in a single person, organization or group of related persons or a single geographic area.

Managing funding risk requires management to keep sufficient liquid assets on hand at all times to meet the mortgage funding needs,
investment purchase commitments and GIC redemption and maturity obligations of Equitable Trust. Assets held for the purpose of providing
liquidity protection consist of cash and cash equivalents and debt instruments guaranteed by governments that were held by Equitable Trust.
These assets amounted to $763.6 million at December 31, 2009 and $820.3 million at December 31, 2008.

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Company adheres to a funding and liquidity risk management policy that provides guidelines relating to the required maintenance of a
pool of high quality liquid assets, including asset eligibility, liquidity portfolio composition criteria, minimum liquidity ratios, the measurement
and forecast of cash flows, liquidity stress testing and an approved contingency plan. The Company’s liquidity position and adherence to the
requirements of this policy are monitored daily by management, with quarterly reporting to the Investment Committee of the Board of
Directors. As defined in the policy, the stress analysis model considers seven scenarios that incorporate institution-specific and financial market
disruptions. In order to establish these scenarios, the Company assesses deposit benchmarks and makes assumptions related to the cash flow
behavior of each type of asset and liability. For all scenarios that comprised Equitable’s liquidity stress testing conducted during 2009, the
Company held sufficient liquidity and funding capacity to meet all funding obligations over the one-year forecasting period.

The Company was in compliance with its liquidity policy at December 31, 2009 and at the date of this report.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the possibility that a loss will result from inefficient, inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems or from
external events. As a minimum, operational risk takes into account the following:

• regulatory, legal and contractual obligations;

• fraud;

• employee practices and workplace safety;

• client, product and business practices;

• damage to physical assets;

• business disruptions and system failures; and

• execution, delivery and process management.

The Company maintains a control environment to manage these risks, recognizing that operational risks may arise in the normal course of business.

Changes to laws and regulations, including changes in their interpretation or application, could affect the Company, limiting the products or
services it may provide and increasing the ability of competitors to compete with Equitable’s products or services. Failure to comply with
applicable laws and regulations could result in sanctions and financial penalties that could adversely impact earnings and damage the
Company’s reputation. Management undertakes reasonable and prudent measures designed to achieve compliance with governing laws and
regulations including Equitable’s legislative compliance management framework.

Control/Management Risk

Control/management risk is the possibility that the Company will experience control or management deficiencies due to limitations typically
found in smaller institutions that may have insufficient resources and capacities to establish appropriate governance systems and controls.

Equitable’s operations depend on the abilities, experience and efforts of management and other key employees. Should any of these persons
be unable or unwilling to continue in their employment, this could potentially have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition
and results of the operations of the Company.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is defined as the possibility that the Company’s ability to implement its strategy successfully over the next three-to-five years will
be affected by changes in the business environment, technological limitations, adverse business decisions, unsuccessful implementation of
decisions or lack of responsiveness to changes in the business environment.

The Company manages strategic risk through a comprehensive annual strategic planning process, which includes establishing Board-approved
business growth strategies and quantifiable performance targets for each business unit over the forthcoming three-year period. Management of
this risk includes regular monitoring of actual versus forecasted performance and reporting to senior management and to the Board of Directors.

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Business Risk

Business risk is the possibility that an unfavorable development of business factors will lead to an operating result that varies from the expected
result for the current year and beyond.

The residential and commercial first mortgage business is highly competitive and Equitable Trust’s products compete with those offered by
other trust companies, banks, insurance companies, and other financial institutions in the jurisdictions in which it operates, especially in Ontario
and Alberta. Many of these companies are strongly capitalized and hold a larger percentage share of the Canadian residential and commercial
mortgage business. There is always a risk that there will be new entrants in the market with more efficient systems and operations that could
impact the Company’s market share in its mortgage lending and deposit-taking activities.

The Company’s business model does not use retail branches to originate GICs or mortgages. Through its deposit-taking activities, Equitable
Trust relies on business conducted on behalf of investing clients by members of the Investment Industry Regulatory Organization of Canada
and the Registered Deposit Brokers Association, formerly the Federation of Canadian Independent Deposit Brokers, to raise funds. Mortgage
originations depend on a network of independent mortgage brokers, mortgage brokerage firms and other mortgage banking organizations.
Under adverse circumstances, it may be difficult to attract new deposits from agents or mortgage business from brokers to sustain current
operating requirements. The potential failure to sustain or increase current levels of deposits or mortgage originations from these sources
could negatively affect the financial condition and operating results of the Company. A single mortgage broker, FNFLP, originated 22% of the
Company’s outstanding on-balance sheet mortgages at December 31, 2009. Management believes it has a strong relationship with FNFLP. If
the Company were to lose a major mortgage broker or deposit agent, it would need to replace the product supplied by that broker or agent,
either from existing or new brokers or retail agents, in order to meet corporate targets.

Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the possibility that current and potential customers, counterparties, analysts, shareholders, investors, regulators or others
will have an adverse opinion of the Company – irrespective of whether this is based on facts or merely public perception. This can result in
potential losses to the Company arising from a decline in business volumes or increased funding costs. The Company has established a number
of policies and procedures to manage this risk.

Responsibilities ofManagement and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the information disclosed in this MD&A and the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Equitable
has in place appropriate information systems and procedures to ensure that information used internally by management and disclosed
externally is materially complete and reliable. In addition, the Company’s Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board of Directors, performs an
oversight role with respect to all public financial disclosures made by the Company and has reviewed and approved this MD&A and the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that all relevant information is accumulated and
communicated to senior management, including the President and Chief Executive Officer on a timely basis, to enable appropriate decisions
to be made regarding public disclosure. Management has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in the rules of the Canadian Securities Administrators) as of December 31, 2009. Based on that evaluation, management has
concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



ANNUALREPORT2009

43

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian GAAP. Management has evaluated the design and operational effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting. This evaluation was conducted in accordance with the framework established by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission for Smaller Businesses, a recognized control model, and the requirements of National Instrument
52-109 of the Canadian Securities Administrators. Based on this evaluation, management has concluded that the design and operational
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2009.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2009 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Non-Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) Financial Measures

Management uses a variety of financial measures to evaluate the Company’s performance. In addition to GAAP prescribed measures,
management uses certain non-GAAP measures that it believes provide useful information to investors regarding our financial condition and
results of operations. Readers are cautioned that non-GAAP measures, such as the tangible common equity ratio do not have any standardized
meaning prescribed by Canadian GAAP, and therefore, are unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. This
ratio is a key measure of capital strength that is defined as shareholder’s equity plus any qualifying other non-controlling interest in subsidiaries
less preferred shares issued, any goodwill, other intangible assets and certain components of accumulated other comprehensive income, as
a percentage of risk-adjusted assets less other intangible assets.

The presentation of financial information on a TEB is a common practice in the banking and trust company industries and does not have a
standardized meaning within GAAP. Therefore, TEB calculations may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.
On a selective basis, the Company uses TEB in the discussion of revenues, interest margins and productivity ratios in this MD&A. The TEB
methodology grosses up tax-exempt income, such as dividends from equity securities, by an amount which makes this income comparable
on a pre-tax basis to regular taxable income such as mortgage interest. In 2009, the grossed-up amount was $3.4 million as compared to $3.6
million in 2008.

From time to time, the Company also utilizes non-GAAP financial measures to reflect circumstances where management separates and discloses
non-recurring items from results that have otherwise been reported, in order to more accurately represent the underlying, recurring business
performance. The Company believes that adjusted results can sometimes enhance comparability between reporting periods or provide the
reader with a better understanding of how management views the Company’s performance.

MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements made by the Company in the sections entitled “Business Profile and Objectives”, “2010 Business Outlook”,
“Net Interest Income”, “Non-Interest Expenses”, “Mortgage Portfolio”, “Credit Quality and Allowance for Credit Losses”, “Liquidity Investments
and Equity Securities”, “Capital Management”, “Future Accounting Changes” and “Risk Management” of this report, in other filings with
Canadian securities regulators and in other communications include forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities
laws (“forward-looking statements”). These statements include, but are not limited to, statements about the Company’s objectives, strategies
and initiatives, financial result expectations and other statements made herein, whether with respect to the Company’s businesses or the
Canadian economy. Generally, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “plans”,
“expects” or “does not expect”, “is expected”, “budget”, “scheduled”, “planned”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates” or “does not
anticipate”, or “believes”, or variations of such words and phrases which state that certain actions, events or results “may”, ”could”, “would”,
“might” or “will be taken”, “occur” or “be achieved”. Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors that may cause the actual results, level of activity, closing of transactions, performance or achievements of the Company to be
materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, including but not limited to risks related to capital
markets and additional funding requirements, fluctuating interest rates and general economic conditions, legislative and regulatory
developments, the nature of our customers and rates of default, and competition as well as those factors discussed under the heading “Risk
Management” herein and in the Company’s documents filed on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

All material assumptions used in making forward-looking statements are based on management’s knowledge of current business conditions
and expectations of future business conditions and trends, including their knowledge of the current credit, interest rate and liquidity conditions
affecting the Company and the Canadian economy. Although the Company believes the assumptions used to make such statements are
reasonable at this time and has attempted to identify in its continuous disclosure documents important factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking statements, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as anticipated,
estimated or intended. Certain material assumptions are applied by the Company in making forward-looking statements, including without
limitation, assumptions regarding its continued ability to fund its mortgage business at current levels, a continuation of the current level of
economic uncertainty that affects real estate market conditions, continued acceptance of its products in the marketplace, as well as no material
changes in its operating cost structure and the current tax regime. There can be no assurance that such statements will prove to be accurate,
as actual results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements. Accordingly, readers should not place
undue reliance on forward-looking statements. The Company does not undertake to update any forward-looking statements that are contained
herein, except in accordance with applicable securities laws.
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The consolidated financial statements of Equitable Group Inc. (the “Company”) are prepared by management, which is responsible for the
integrity and fairness of the information presented. The information provided herein, in the opinion of management, has been prepared,
within reasonable limits of materiality, using appropriate accounting policies that are in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles as well as the accounting requirements of the Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada (“OSFI”) as
these apply to its subsidiary, The Equitable Trust Company (“Equitable Trust”). The consolidated financial statements reflect amounts which
must, of necessity, be based on informed judgments and estimates of the expected effects of current events and transactions.

Management maintains a system of internal control to meet its responsibility for the integrity of the consolidated financial statements.
Management also administers a program of ethical business conduct, which includes quality standards in hiring and training employees,
written policies and a written corporate code of conduct.

The Board of Directors of the Company (the“Board”) oversees management’s responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements through
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee conducts a detailed review of the consolidated financial statements with management and
internal and external auditors before recommending their approval to the Board.

The Company’s subsidiary, Equitable Trust, is federally regulated under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) by OSFI. On a regular
basis, OSFI conducts an examination to assess the operations of Equitable Trust and its compliance with statutory requirements and sound
business practices.

KPMG LLP has been appointed as external auditors by the shareholders to examine the consolidated financial statements of the Company in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. The external auditors have unrestricted access to and periodically meet with
the Audit Committee, with and without management present, to discuss their audits and related matters.

AndrewMoor John Ayanoglou
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

February 24, 2010

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Equitable Group Inc. as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements
of income, changes in shareholders’equity, comprehensive income and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada

February 24, 2010

MANAGEMENT ’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
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As at December 31 2009 2008

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) $ 395,835 $ 50,121
Restricted cash (note 3) 5,000 8,422
Investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements (note 4) 129,721 698,276
Investments (note 4) 388,037 170,321
Securitization retained interests (note 5) 147,195 101,806
Mortgages receivable (note 7) 2,763,020 3,023,015
Other assets (note 8) 17,266 35,590

$ 3,846,074 $ 4,087,551

Liabilities and Shareholders’Equity
Liabilities:

Customer deposits (note 9) $ 3,332,319 $ 3,692,569
Future income taxes (note 10) 19,999 17,839
Other liabilities (note 11) 54,724 36,433
Bank term loans (note 12) 27,500 44,595
Subordinated debentures (note 13) 37,671 31,969

3,472,213 3,823,405

Shareholders’equity (notes 14 and 15):
Preferred shares 48,523 –
Common shares 127,424 126,993
Contributed surplus 3,267 2,553
Retained earnings 193,635 149,365
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1,012 (14,765)

373,861 264,146
Commitments and contingencies (note 18)

$ 3,846,074 $ 4,087,551

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Austin Beutel AndrewMoor
Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
($ THOUSANDS)
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Years ended December 31 2009 2008

Interest income:
Mortgages $ 162,991 $ 186,519
Investments 13,548 8,180
Other 3,599 17,255

180,138 211,954
Interest expense:

Customer deposits 94,322 133,770
Deposit agent commissions 7,149 8,468
Bank term loans 3,188 3,025
Subordinated debentures 2,310 2,348

106,969 147,611
Net interest income 73,169 64,343
Provision for credit losses (note 7) 6,600 3,450
Net interest income after provision for credit losses 66,569 60,893
Other income:

Fees and other income 3,246 1,832
Net gain (loss) on investments (note 4) 50 (295)
Gains on securitization activities and income from retained interests (note 5) 24,390 13,275

27,686 14,812
Net interest income and other income 94,255 75,705
Non-interest expenses:

Compensation and benefits 15,367 13,253
Other 10,540 9,438

25,907 22,691
Income before income taxes 68,348 53,014
Income taxes (note 10):

Current 12,660 4,929
Future 4,250 9,474

16,910 14,403
Net income 51,438 38,611
Dividends on preferred shares 1,212 –
Net income available to common shareholders $ 50,226 $ 38,611

Earnings per share (note 16):
Basic $ 3.37 $ 2.79
Diluted $ 3.36 $ 2.78

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
($ THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
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Years ended December 31 2009 2008

Preferred shares (note 14):
Balance, beginning of year $ – $ –
Gross proceeds of equity issue, Series 1 50,000 –
Issue expenses, net of tax recovery of $638 (2008 – nil) (1,477) –
Balance, end of year 48,523 –

Common shares (note 14):
Balance, beginning of year 126,993 87,062
Gross proceeds of equity issue – 40,850
Issue expenses, net of tax recovery of nil (2008 – $698) – (1,510)
Proceeds from reinvestment of dividends 189 –
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 195 525
Transferred from contributed surplus relating to the exercise of stock options 47 66
Balance, end of year 127,424 126,993

Contributed surplus:
Balance, beginning of year 2,553 1,778
Stock-based compensation (note 15) 761 841
Transferred to common shares relating to the exercise of stock options (47) (66)
Balance, end of year 3,267 2,553

Retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of year 149,365 116,325
Net income 51,438 38,611
Dividends

Preferred shares (1,212) –
Common shares (5,956) (5,571)

Balance, end of year 193,635 149,365

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Balance, beginning of year (14,765) (1,995)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 15,777 (12,770)
Balance, end of year 1,012 (14,765)

Total retained earnings and accumulated other comprehensive income 194,647 134,600
Total shareholders’equity $ 373,861 $ 264,146

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
($ THOUSANDS)

Years ended December 31 2009 2008

Net income $ 51,438 $ 38,611
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Available for sale investments:
Net unrealized gains (losses) from change in fair value(1) 19,324 (12,483)
Reclassification of net gains to income(2) (3,547) (287)

Other comprehensive income (loss) 15,777 (12,770)
Comprehensive income $ 67,215 $ 25,841

(1) Net of income tax expense of $9,262 (2008 – tax benefit of $6,229).
(2) Net of income tax benefit of $1,700 (2008 – tax benefit of $144).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
($ THOUSANDS)
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Years ended December 31 2009 2008

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:

Net income $ 51,438 $ 38,611
Non-cash items:

Financial instruments – fair value adjustments 2,572 (10,023)
Securitization gains (20,221) (10,076)
Amortization of capital assets 605 779
Provision for credit losses 6,600 3,450
Net (gain) loss on investments (27) 39
Future income taxes 2,798 9,475
Stock-based compensation 761 841
Amortization of premiums on investments, net 803 1,344

45,329 34,440
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other assets 5,783 (3,586)
Other liabilities (6,312) 511

44,800 31,365
Financing activities:

(Decrease) increase in customer deposits (355,328) 582,665
Repayment of bank term loan (17,095) –
Issuance of subordinated debentures 23,221 –
Redemption of subordinated debentures (17,519) –
Dividends paid on preferred shares (1,212) –
Dividends paid on common shares (5,765) (5,571)
Issuance of preferred shares 47,885 –
Issuance of common shares 195 39,167

(325,618) 616,261
Investing activities:

Purchase of investments (239,098) (5,000)
Proceeds on sale or redemption of investments 248,080 104,538
Purchase of investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements (941,681) (2,133,537)
Proceeds on sale or redemption of investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements 1,510,236 1,667,381
Change in restricted cash 3,422 (3,422)
Increase in mortgages receivable (2,838,218) (3,135,352)
Mortgage principal repayments 1,454,319 1,581,808
Proceeds from loan securitizations 1,402,222 1,291,679
Securitization retained interests 27,530 18,931
Purchase of capital assets (280) (458)

626,532 (613,432)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 345,714 34,194
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 50,121 15,927
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 395,835 $ 50,121

Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 102,811 $ 135,084
Income taxes paid 15,767 10,415

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
($ THOUSANDS)
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Equitable Group Inc. (the “Company”) was formed on January 1, 2004 as the parent company of its wholly owned subsidiary, The Equitable Trust
Company (“Equitable Trust”). Equitable Trust is federally regulated under the Trust and Loan Companies Act (Canada) by the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions Canada (“OSFI”). The Company operates principally in one industry segment as a deposit-taking
institution investing in mortgages.

1. Significant accounting policies:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). The following notes describe the Company’s significant accounting policies:

(a) Basis of presentation:

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and results of operations of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Equitable Trust, after the elimination of intercompany transactions and balances.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits with regulated financial institutions and highly liquid short-term investments, including
government guaranteed investments and other money market instruments, whose term to maturity at date of purchase is less than
three months. Interest earned on cash and cash equivalents is included in interest income − other in the consolidated statements of
income. These short-term investments are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

(c) Investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements:

Investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements represent a purchase of Government of Canada guaranteed debt
securities by the Company effected with a simultaneous agreement to sell the assets back at a specified price on a specified future
date, which is generally short term. The investment is held on the consolidated balance sheets and is recorded at its carrying value,
which approximates its fair value due to the short-term nature of the transaction. The interest income related to these investments is
recorded on an accrual basis and is included in interest income − other.

(d) Investments:

Investments have been designated as available for sale, are accounted for at settlement date and are reported on the consolidated
balance sheets at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of income taxes.

Investments are purchased with the original intention to hold the securities to maturity or until market conditions render alternative
investments more attractive. If impairment in value is other than temporary, any write-down to net realizable value is reported in the
consolidated statements of income. Gains and losses realized on the sale, redemption or write-down of investments are recorded in
other income in the consolidated statements of income. Interest income earned, amortization of premiums and discounts and
dividends are included in interest income − investments in the consolidated statements of income. The fair values of investments are
generally based on quoted market prices.

(e) Mortgages receivable and revenue recognition:

(i) Mortgages receivable designated as loans and receivables:

Mortgages receivable are recorded at amortized cost plus accrued interest, net of unamortized origination fees, unearned income,
unamortized premiums or discounts and an allowance for credit losses. Net fees relating to mortgage origination are amortized to
income on an effective yield basis over the term of the mortgages to which they relate, and are included in interest income –
mortgages in the consolidated statements of income.

(ii) Mortgages held for securitization designated as held for trading:

Mortgages held for securitization designated as held for trading are carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in gains
on securitization activities and income from retained interests in the consolidated statements of income. Net fees relating to

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
($ THOUSANDS EXCEPT SHARE, PER SHARE AND STOCK OPTION AMOUNTS)

Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

mortgage origination are expensed as incurred and are included in gains on securitization activities and income from retained
interests in the consolidated statements of income.

(iii) Other mortgages designated as held for trading:

Certain mortgages designated as held for trading are carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in interest income –
mortgages in the consolidated statements of income.

Interest on mortgages receivable is recorded on the accrual basis. The Company classifies a mortgage receivable as impaired when, in
the opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to the collectability, either in whole or in part, of principal or interest.
Conventional mortgages where payment is contractually past due 90 days and mortgages guaranteed by the Government of Canada
where payment is contractually past due 365 days are automatically placed on a non-accrual basis, unless management is reasonably
assured as to the recoverability of principal and interest. Thereafter, interest income is recognized on a cash basis, but only after prior
write-offs and provisions for losses have been recovered, provided there is no further doubt as to the collectability of principal.

When an impaired mortgage is identified, the carrying amount of the mortgage is reduced to its net realizable amount, measured on
the basis of expected future cash flows, and discounted at the mortgage’s effective interest rate. This impairment is reflected in the
consolidated statements of income in the years in which the impairment is recognized. In subsequent periods, recoveries of amounts
previously written off and any increase in the carrying value of the mortgage are credited to the allowance for credit losses on the
consolidated balance sheets.

(f ) Allowance for credit losses:

The allowance for credit losses consists of both specific and general allowances. Specific allowances relate to individual mortgages that,
in the opinion of management, are necessary to reflect the estimated net realizable value of the particular mortgage as described in
(e) above. General allowances are based on management’s assessment of probable, unidentified losses in the portfolio at the
consolidated balance sheet dates that have not been specifically identified as impaired. The allowance is determined based on
management’s identification and evaluation of problem accounts and includes an assessment of statistical and qualitative analyses of
the performance of the portfolio, taking into account such factors as economic conditions, security and mortgage type, concentration
risks and geographical exposure.

(g) Securitization retained interests:

For each securitization transaction, where the Company retains the servicing rights, an asset is recognized as securitization retained
interests on the consolidated balance sheets. Securitization retained interests are investments classified as available for sale securities
and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value reported in other comprehensive income, net of income taxes. When mortgages
are sold in a securitization transaction under terms that transfer control to third parties, the transaction is recognized as a sale and the
related mortgage assets are removed from the consolidated balance sheets. In the securitization transaction, certain interests are
retained, including the right to receive the future excess interest spread and the mortgage servicing obligation. For securitizations
entered into after July 1, 2001, the servicing liability is reported as a component of other liabilities. For securitizations entered into
prior to this date, the servicing liability and the future excess interest spread are reported on a net basis. A gain or loss on the sale of
the mortgages is recognized immediately in the consolidated statements of income. The amount of the gain or loss recognized depends
in part on the previous carrying amount of the mortgages involved in the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the retained
interests based on their relative fair values at the date of transfer. To obtain fair values, the Company uses estimates based on the
present value of future expected cash flows determined using management’s best estimates of key assumptions, including prepayment
rates and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

(h) Derivative financial instruments:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments primarily to manage exposure to interest rate risk. Derivative products that are
primarily used are interest rate swaps and short sale and repurchase agreements of Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities.
Interest rate swaps are used to adjust exposure to interest rate risk by modifying the maturity characteristics of existing assets and
liabilities. Short sale and repurchase agreements are used to hedge interest rate exposure on mortgages held for securitization, on
commitments for mortgages to be securitized and on certain other mortgages designated as held for trading.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

Derivative financial instruments are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets as held for trading financial instruments and are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair value for derivatives related to securitization activities are included, as appropriate, in gains on
securitization activities and income from retained interests. Changes in fair value for derivatives related to other mortgages designated
as held for trading are included in interest income. Changes in fair value for derivatives related to interest rate swap activities are
included in interest expense.

(i) Stock-based compensation:

The Company has a stock option plan for directors and eligible employees of Equitable Trust. Under this plan, options are periodically
awarded to participants to purchase common shares at prices equal to the closing market price of the shares on the date prior to the
date the options were granted. Prior to the initial public offering of the Company’s shares on March 18, 2004, certain options were
granted to purchase common shares at prices equal to the fair value of the shares, as determined under the plan. The Company uses
the fair value-based method of accounting for stock options and recognizes compensation expense based on the fair value of the
options on the date of the grant, which is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The fair value of the options is
recognized over the vesting period of the options granted as compensation expense with a corresponding increase in contributed
surplus. The contributed surplus balance is reduced as the options are exercised and the amount initially recorded for the options in
contributed surplus is credited to capital stock. Compensation expense related to the stock-based compensation plan is included in
the consolidated statements of income.

In addition to the stock option plan, the Company has a Deferred Share Unit (“DSU”) Plan for directors. The obligation that results from
the award of a DSU is recognized in income upon the grant of the unit and the corresponding amount is included in other liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. The change in the obligation attributable to the change in stock price and dividends paid on common
shares is recognized in compensation expense in the consolidated statements of income for the period in which the changes occur. The
redemption value of each DSU is the volume-weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company on the Toronto
Stock Exchange (“TSX”) for the five trading days prior to the date the individual ceases to be a director.

(j) Income taxes:

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method, future tax
assets and liabilities represent the amount of tax applicable to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities and their values for tax purposes. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the years that include the date of
enactment or substantive enactment.

(k) Capital assets:

Capital assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using a reducing-balance method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets at the following annual rates:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Computer hardware and software 30%

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease.

(l) Customer deposits:

Customer deposits are comprised of guaranteed investment certificates (“GICs”) issued to depositors. Customer deposits, with the
exception of those designated as held for trading, are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Deferred deposit agent commissions are accounted for as a component of customer deposits with the amortization
of these commissions – with the exception of commissions relating to customer deposits designated as held for trading, which are
expensed as incurred – being calculated on an effective yield basis as a component of interest expense.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(m) Bank term loans and subordinated debentures:

Bank term loans and subordinated debentures are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

(n) Earnings per share:

Earnings per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if additional common shares
are assumed to be issued under securities or contracts that entitle their holders to obtain common shares in the future. The number of
additional shares for inclusion in diluted earnings per share calculations is determined using the treasury stock method. Under this method,
stock options which exercise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s common shares are assumed to be exercised
and the proceeds are used to repurchase common shares at the average market price for the year. The incremental number of common
shares issued under stock options and repurchased from proceeds is included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

(o) Use of estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the years. Certain estimates, including the allowance for credit
losses, the fair values of financial instruments, accounting for securitizations and income taxes require management to make subjective
or complex judgments. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(p) Changes in accounting policy:

Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

On January 20, 2009, the Emerging Issues Committee issued Abstract 173 (EIC 173), Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities. The abstract requires an entity to take into account its own credit risk and the credit risk of the counterparty when
determining the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, including derivative instruments. The new guidance did not have
a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value and Liquidity Risk Disclosure – Amendments to: Financial Instruments – Disclosures:

In June 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) amended Section 3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures, to enhance the
disclosure requirements regarding fair value measurements and the liquidity risk, also referred to as funding risk in these financial
statements, of financial instruments.

Section 3862 now requires that all financial instruments valued at fair value be categorized into one of three fair value hierarchy levels,
ranging from those fair value measurements that are determined using quoted market prices in an active market to those fair value
measurements that are based on inputs that are not based on observable market data. Refer to note 2 for the new disclosure.

The additional disclosures over liquidity risk require disclosure of maturity analysis for financial liabilities. Refer to note 17 for additional disclosure.

(q) Future accounting changes:

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS“):

The AcSB requires that all publicly accountable enterprises adopt IFRS for years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. IFRS will replace
Canadian GAAP and on January 1, 2011, these standards will apply to the Company. A description of the Company’s implementation
plan, progress and the expected impact on its financial reporting is included in the Company’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the three months and year ended December 31, 2009 on pages 36 and 37.

(r) Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation adopted for 2009.
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2. Financial instruments:

The Company’s business activities result in a consolidated balance sheet that consists primarily of financial instruments and the majority
of net income results from gains, losses, income and expenses related to the same.

Financial instrument assets include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, investments purchased under reverse repurchase
agreements, investments, mortgages receivable, securitization retained interests and derivative financial instruments. Financial instrument
liabilities include customer deposits, securitized mortgage servicing liability, derivative financial instruments, bank term loans and
subordinated debentures.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value, cost or amortized cost according to the
categories determined by the accounting framework for financial instruments.

(a) Risks associated with financial instruments:

The use of financial instruments exposes the Company to credit risk, interest rate risk and funding risk. The following is a discussion of
the Company’s risk exposures and how it manages those risks:

Credit risk management:

Credit risk is defined as the possibility that the Company will not receive the full value of amounts and recovery costs owed to it if
counterparties fail to honour their obligations.

The Company’s focus is on providing first mortgages on real estate. All mortgages are individually evaluated by underwriters using
internal and external credit risk assessment tools and are assigned a risk rating, in accordance with the level of credit risk attributed to
each loan. The underwriting approach places a strong emphasis on security evaluation and judgmental analysis of the risks in the
transaction rather than being formulaic in nature. As a result, the Company can underwrite mortgages on favourable terms to borrowers
who have good equity and debt service ratios in situations where conventional lenders may typically decline borrowers.

On a regular basis, management establishes credit limits for exposure to certain counterparties, industries or market segments.
Management also monitors these credit exposures, and prepares detailed analyses and reports assessing overall credit risk within the
mortgage portfolio. Key components of credit risk that are closely monitored and measured are credit concentration risk and the risk
associated with economically-sensitive assets. By way of definition, credit concentration risk results if an unduly large proportion of the
Company’s lending business involves a single person, organization or group of related persons or organizations, a single geographic
area, a single industry or a single category of investment.

The Company also invests in preferred share securities to generate returns that meet an acceptable hurdle threshold from a return on equity
perspective. These securities represent a potential source of liquidity to the Company. However, such investments expose the Company to
credit risk if the issuer of the preferred shares cannot make dividend payments, or in the worst case scenario, if the issuer becomes insolvent.

Securities rated P-2 and higher comprised 61.9% of the preferred share equity securities portfolio at December 31, 2009, compared to
75.6% a year earlier.

Interest rate risk management:

Interest rate risk is defined as the possibility that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the Company’s financial condition.
Interest rate risk may be affected if an unduly large proportion of the Company’s assets or liabilities have unmatched terms, interest rates
or other attributes.

The Company’s primary method of managing interest rate risk involves the matching of asset and liability maturity profiles, closely
monitoring interest rates and acting upon any mismatch in a timely manner to ensure that any sudden or prolonged change in interest
rates does not significantly affect the Company’s net interest income.

The Company uses simulated interest rate change sensitivity models to estimate the effects of various interest rate change scenarios
on the economic value of shareholders’equity and on net interest income for the 12 months following the measurement date. Certain
assumptions that are based on actual experience are built into the simulations, including assumptions related to the pre-maturity
redemptions of GICs and early payouts of mortgages. Estimates of Cashable GIC redemptions are also modeled.
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2. Financial instruments (continued):

The Company hedges the interest rate risk for all multi-unit residential mortgages that are to be securitized through the Canada
Mortgage and Housing Corporation (“CMHC“) Mortgage Backed Securities (“MBS“) and Canada Mortgage Bond (“CMB”) Programs.
Hedging protects the Company from losses due to changes in interest rates during the relevant period.

The Company also holds replacement assets in the form of MBS in order to reduce the interest rate risk and replacement asset exposure
inherent in its participation in the CMB Program.

The Company’s earnings are affected by changes in interest rates. The estimate of sensitivity to interest rate changes is dependent on
a number of assumptions that could result in a difference in actual outcomes in the event of an actual interest rate change.

Funding risk management:

Funding risk (also referred to as liquidity risk) is defined as the possibility that the Company will be unable to generate or obtain sufficient
cash or its equivalents in a timely manner, at a reasonable price, to meet its commitments as they fall due. Funding risk may be affected
if an unduly large proportion of the Company’s deposit-taking business involves a single person, organization or group of related
persons or a single geographic area.

Managing funding risk requires management to keep sufficient liquid assets on hand at all times to meet the mortgage funding needs,
investment purchase commitments and GIC redemption and maturity obligations of Equitable Trust. Assets held for the purpose of
providing liquidity protection consist of cash and cash equivalents and debt instruments guaranteed by governments held by Equitable
Trust. These assets amounted to $763.6 million at December 31, 2009 and $820.3 million at December 31, 2008.

The Company was in compliance with its liquidity policy at December 31, 2009. It is the Company’s policy to maintain, at all times,
regulatory liquid assets at levels equivalent to, or greater than 22.5% of GICs maturing in the next 100 days and all Cashable GICs (“100
Day Maturities”). At December 31, 2009, these maturities amounted to $991.2 million. The Company held regulatory liquid assets
corresponding to 77.0% of its 100 Day Maturities as at December 31, 2009.

(b) Determination of fair value:

When a financial instrument is initially recognized, its fair value is the amount of consideration for which the financial instruments
would be exchanged in an arm’s-length transaction between knowledgeable parties who are under no compulsion to act.

Subsequent to initial recognition, for financial instruments measured at fair value where active market prices are available, bid prices
are used for financial assets and ask prices for financial liabilities. For those financial instruments measured at fair value where an active
market is not available, fair value estimates are determined using valuation methods which refer to observable market data and include
discounted cash flow analysis and other commonly used valuation techniques.

Valuation methods and assumptions used to estimate fair values of financial instruments:

(i) Financial instruments whose carrying value approximates fair value:

The carrying value of certain financial assets and financial liabilities corresponds to a reasonable approximation of fair value. The
Company considers that the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, investments purchased under reverse
repurchase agreements as well as certain other assets and liabilities, approximates fair value.

(ii) Available for sale and held for trading financial assets and liabilities:

These financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. For financial instruments
measured at fair value where active market prices are available, bid prices are used for financial assets and ask prices for financial
liabilities. For those financial instruments measured at fair value where an active market is not available, fair value estimates are
determined using valuation methods which refer to observable market data and include discounted cash flow analysis and other
commonly used valuation techniques.

The fair value of securitization retained interests is determined with internal valuation models using market data inputs, where possible,
by discounting expected future cash flows at a yield plus a spread for like term Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities.
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2. Financial instruments (continued):

(iii) Mortgages receivable:

The estimated fair value of mortgages receivable is determined using a discounted cash flow calculation and the market interest
rates offered for mortgages with similar terms and credit risks.

(iv) Customer deposits:

The estimated fair value of customer deposits is determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using observed
market interest rates offered for deposits with similar terms.

(v) Bank term loans and subordinated debentures:

The estimated fair value of bank term loans and subordinated debentures are determined by discounting expected future
contractual cash flows using market interest rates offered for similar terms.

The following table presents the carrying values for each category of financial assets and liabilities and their estimated fair values. The table
does not include assets and liabilities that are not considered financial instruments.

Financial Loans and
instruments Financial receivables/

required to be instruments financial
classified as held designated as held Available liabilities at cost Carrying Fair

2009 for trading for trading for sale or amortized cost value value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 395,835 $ – $ – $ – $ 395,835 $ 395,835
Restricted cash 5,000 – – – 5,000 5,000
Investments purchased under

reverse repurchase agreements – – – 129,721 129,721 129,721
Investments – – 388,037 – 388,037 388,037
Securitization retained interests – – 147,195 – 147,195 147,195
Mortgages receivable(1) – 141,449 – 2,621,571 2,763,020 2,796,545
Other assets:

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – interest rate swaps 294 – – – 294 294

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – hedges 264 – – – 264 264

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – securitization activities 2,358 – – – 2,358 2,358

Other – – – 3,503 3,503 3,503
Total financial assets $ 403,751 $ 141,449 $ 535,232 $ 2,754,795 $ 3,835,227 $ 3,868,752

Financial liabilities:
Customer deposits(1) $ – $ 10,238 $ – $ 3,322,081 $ 3,332,319 $ 3,343,148
Other liabilities:

Mortgage commitments 14 – – – 14 14
Other – – – 54,243 54,243 54,243

Bank term loans – – – 27,500 27,500 28,838
Subordinated debentures – – – 37,671 37,671 37,610
Total financial liabilities $ 14 $ 10,238 $ – $ 3,441,495 $ 3,451,747 $ 3,463,853

(1) Mortgages receivable are presented net of deferred loan origination fees and deferred commitment income. Customer deposits are presented net of deferred deposit agent commissions.
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2. Financial instruments (continued):

Financial Loans and
instruments Financial receivables/

required to be instruments financial
classified as held designated as held Available liabilities at cost Carrying Fair

2008 for trading for trading for sale or amortized cost value value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,121 $ – $ – $ – $ 50,121 $ 50,121
Restricted cash 8,422 – – – 8,422 8,422
Investments purchased under

reverse repurchase agreements – – – 698,276 698,276 698,276
Investments – – 170,321 – 170,321 170,321
Securitization retained interests – – 101,806 – 101,806 101,806
Mortgages receivable(1) – 83,636 – 2,939,379 3,023,015 3,034,760
Other assets:

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – interest rate swaps 14,836 – – – 14,836 14,836

Mortgage commitments 296 – – – 296 296
Other – – – 5,266 5,266 5,266

Total financial assets $ 73,675 $ 83,636 $ 272,127 $ 3,642,921 $ 4,072,359 $ 4,084,104

Financial liabilities:
Customer deposits(1) $ – $ 620,042 $ – $ 3,072,527 $ 3,692,569 $ 3,751,844
Other liabilities:

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – hedges 408 – – – 408 408

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – securitization activities 3,527 – – – 3,527 3,527

Other – – – 30,987 30,987 30,987
Bank term loans – – – 44,595 44,595 47,222
Subordinated debentures – – – 31,969 31,969 32,889
Total financial liabilities $ 3,935 $ 620,042 $ – $ 3,180,078 $ 3,804,055 $ 3,866,877

(1) Mortgages receivable are presented net of deferred loan origination fees and deferred commitment income. Customer deposits are presented net of deferred deposit agent commissions.
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2. Financial instruments (continued):

(c) Fair value hierarchy:

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheet are classified using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 – valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) observed in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 – valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 – valuation techniques with significant unobservable market inputs.

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs exist. A financial instrument is classified
to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet, classified using the fair
value hierarchy:

Total financial assets/
financial liabilities

2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 at fair value

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 395,835 $ – $ – $ 395,835
Restricted cash 5,000 – – 5,000
Investments 151,147 236,890 – 388,037
Securitization retained interests – 147,195 – 147,195
Mortgages receivable – 141,449 – 141,449
Other assets:

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – interest rate swaps – 294 294

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – hedges 264 – – 264

Fair value of derivative financial
instruments – securitization activities 2,358 – – 2,358

Total financial assets $ 554,604 $ 525,828 $ – $ 1,080,432

Financial liabilities:
Customer deposits $ – $ 10,238 $ – $ 10,238
Other liabilities:

Mortgage commitments – 14 – 14
Total financial liabilities $ – $ 10,252 $ – $ 10,252
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3. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:

2009 2008

Deposits with regulated financial institutions $ 395,835 $ 25,125
Short-term investments – 24,996

$ 395,835 $ 50,121

Restricted cash of $5,000 (2008 – $8,422) is held as collateral by a third party for the Company’s interest rate swap transactions.

4. Investments:

The analysis of investments at carrying value, by type and maturity, is as follows:

2009 2008
Maturities Total Total

Within Over 1 to Over 3 to Over 5 carrying carrying
1 year 3 years 5 years years value value

Debt securities issued or guaranteed by:
Canada $ 26,944 $ 27,515 $ 147,727 $ 35,875 $ 238,061 $ 73,563

Equity securities:
Preferred shares - 56,392 22,028 71,556(1) 149,976 96,758

$ 26,944 $ 83,907 $ 169,755 $ 107,431 $ 388,037 $ 170,321

(1) Includes investments with no specific maturity.

The analysis of investments at fair value is as follows:

2009 2008
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

cost gains losses fair value cost gains losses fair value

Debt securities issued
or guaranteed by:
Canada $ 230,212 $ 8,035 $ (186) $ 238,061 $ 69,950 $ 3,613 $ – $ 73,563

Equity securities:
Preferred shares 158,958 2,588 (11,570) 149,976 127,235 12 (30,489) 96,758

$ 389,170 $ 10,623 $ (11,756) $ 388,037 $ 197,185 $ 3,625 $ (30,489) $ 170,321

The Company held investments under reverse repurchase agreements at December 31, 2009 in the amount of $129,721 (2008 – $698,276).
Investments purchased under reverse repurchase agreements represent a purchase of Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities
by the Company effected with a simultaneous agreement to sell the assets back at a specified price on a specified future date, which is
generally short-term.
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5. Securitization retained interests:

(a) Retained interests:

The Company securitizes Government of Canada guaranteed residential mortgages through the creation of mortgage backed securities.
These mortgage backed securities are sold through the CMHC MBS and CMB Programs or are otherwise retained on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. As at December 31, 2009, outstanding securitized mortgages totaled $4,093,180 (2008 – $2,825,063).

Under GAAP, the Company accounts for securitization transactions as sales when control over the mortgages has been surrendered and
consideration, in addition to beneficial interests in the transferred mortgages, have been received in exchange. At the time of sale, a
gain is recognized based on the Company’s best estimate of the net present value of expected future cash flows, primarily the retained
interests, net of an estimate for the cost of servicing obligations as the Company retained the responsibility for servicing the mortgages.
The retained interests are recorded as part of securitization retained interests while the servicing liability is recorded as part of other
liabilities (note 11). During the life of the securitization, the retained interests are amortized as cash is received. Similarly, the servicing
liability previously recognized is also amortized to gains on securitization activities and income from retained interests in the
consolidated statements of income.

Retained interests are accounted for at settlement date. The fair value of the retained interests is determined – with internal valuation
models using market data inputs, where possible – by discounting the expected future cash flows at a yield plus a spread for like term
Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities.

The following table provides quantitative information about the securitization activities during the year:

2009 2008

Mortgages securitized and sold $ 1,400,939 $ 1,295,955
Mortgages securitized and retained 205,883 74,364
Cash proceeds, net of accrued interest received on mortgages securitized and sold 1,402,222 1,291,679
Retained rights to future excess interest 76,395 66,504
Servicing liability recorded 28,522 16,718
Gains on mortgages securitized and sold 18,320 10,330
Gains (losses) on other securitization activities 1,901 (254)

The following table provides quantitative information about key assumptions in measuring the Company’s retained interests at the date
of securitization during the year:

2009 2008
Residential mortgages Residential mortgages

Discount rate 2.82% 3.66%
Prepayment rate(1) 1.33% 0.69%
Excess spread 1.11% 1.21%

(1) The prepayment rate assumption used for single-family residential mortgages is 20.00%. Multi-family residential mortgages have no prepayment rate assumption, as under
the terms of the multi-family residential mortgages, prepayment penalties are sufficient to ensure that the Company will receive all of its investment upon the early discharge
or prepayment of anymortgage.

With respect to expected credit losses, the Company has assumed no credit losses for purposes of measuring its retained interests
since all mortgages securitized are Government of Canada guaranteed.
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5. Securitization retained interests (continued):

Other quantitative information related to securitization retained interests is as follows:

2009 2008

Cash flows received on securitization retained interests, net of servicing fees paid $ 23,837 $ 19,405
Securitization retained interests 147,195 101,806
Amortization of securitization retained interests 27,530 18,931
Securitized mortgage servicing liability (note 11) 40,606 19,945
Amortization of securitized mortgage servicing liability 7,862 2,725
Net unrealized fair value gain included in securitization retained interests 1,692 4,908

The components of income from gains on securitization activities and income from retained interests are as follows:

2009 2008

Excess interest spread, net of servicing fees $ 4,169 $ 3,199
Gains on securitization activities 20,221 10,076

$ 24,390 $ 13,275

The following table presents the sensitivity of the fair value of retained interests to two adverse changes in the key assumption relating
to the discount rate as at December 31, 2009. The following sensitivity analysis is hypothetical and should be used with caution:

2009 2008
Residential mortgages Residential mortgages

Carrying value of retained interests $ 147,195 $ 101,806
Discount rate 2.82% 2.28%
Impact on fair value of a 10% adverse change (973) (542)
Impact on fair value of a 20% adverse change (1,932) (1,078)

The valuation of the future excess interest spread includes a weighted average excess spread of 0.98% (2008 – 0.92%), and the key
assumption of a weighted average discount rate of 2.82% (2008 – 2.28%). There are no expected credit losses as the mortgages are
government guaranteed. Multi-family residential mortgages have no prepayment rate estimates, as under the terms of the multi-
family residential mortgages, prepayment penalties are sufficient to ensure that the Company will receive all of its investment upon the
early discharge of any mortgage. Single family residential mortgages have been valued with an estimated annual prepayment rate of
20.00%.

The Company estimates that the future excess interest spread and servicing liability will be received or paid as follows:

Excess interest spread Servicing liability

2010 $ 34,851 $ 9,074
2011 33,023 8,956
2012 30,657 8,728
2013 25,997 7,476
2014 10,334 3,012
Thereafter 12,333 3,360

$ 147,195 $ 40,606
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5. Securitization retained interests (continued):

(b) Mortgage commitments:

Mortgage commitments for government guaranteed mortgages to be securitized are designated as held for trading and are carried at
fair value. Fair value is determined by reference to the change in the bid side of like term Government of Canada guaranteed debt
securities plus a spread. Changes in fair value reflect changes in interest rates that have occurred since commitment to the mortgage
interest rate. The fair value of mortgage commitments of ($14) (2008 – $296) is included in other liabilities (note 11) and other assets
(note 8) for 2008.

6. Derivative financial instruments:

(a) Hedge instruments:

The Company’s securitization activities are subject to interest rate risk, which represents the potential for changes in the value of assets
and liabilities due to fluctuations in interest rates. The Company enters into hedging transactions to manage interest rate exposures
on mortgages held for securitization and on commitments for mortgages to be securitized, typically for periods of up to 90 days, as well
as on certain other mortgages designated as held for trading.

Hedge instruments outstanding at year end are short sale and repurchase agreements of Government of Canada guaranteed debt
securities, where the counterparties are chartered banks, their subsidiaries or other financial intermediaries, and are as follows:

2009 2008
Unrealized Unrealized

Bond term (years) Notional amount Fair value (gain) loss(1) Notional amount Fair value (gain) loss (1)

1 to 5 $ 62,100 $ 61,652 $ (533) $ 73,900 $ 77,884 $ 3,527
6 to 10 103,745 102,732 (2,089) 13,357 14,940 408

$ 165,845 $ 164,384 $ (2,622) $ 87,257 $ 92,824 $ 3,935

(1) Hedge instruments tomanage interest rate exposures onmortgages held for securitization and on commitments for mortgages to be securitized are fair value hedges carried at
fair valuewith changes in fair value included in gains on securitizationactivities and income from retained interests. Hedge instruments tomanage interest rate exposures on certain
other mortgages designated as held for trading are fair value hedges and are carried at fair value with changes in fair value included in interest income – mortgages. The fair
values of the hedge instruments are determined by reference to the ask side of the relatedGovernment of Canadaguaranteed debt securities at the reporting date. The unrealized
gain is included in other assets (note 8) and the unrealized loss for 2008 is included in other liabilities (note 11).

(b) Interest rate swaps:

The Company enters into interest rate swaps to manage interest rate exposures on GICs used to fund floating rate mortgages. These
hedging facilities are secured by investments in preferred shares and cash equivalents. The fair value of the GIC interest rate swap
agreements are included in other assets (note 8) with the changes in fair value included in interest expense. Approved counterparties
are limited to chartered banks and other financial intermediaries.

Interest rate swaps outstanding at year end are as follows:

2009 2008
Swap term (years) Notional amount Fair value Notional amount Fair value
1 to 5 $ 10,000 $ 294 $ 615,000 $ 14,836

(c) Embedded derivatives:

The Company’s equity securities contain embedded derivatives which are required to be bifurcated from the underlying investment
and valued separately. These bifurcated derivatives do not currently have significant value and, therefore, are not reported separately.
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7. Mortgages receivable:

(a) Mortgages receivable:

Allowance for credit losses
2009 Gross amount Specific General Total Net amount

Residential mortgages $ 1,783,664 $ 2,266 $ 8,181 $ 10,447 $ 1,773,217
Other mortgages 739,656 2,030 1,927 3,957 735,699
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale 242,880 – 231 231 242,649
Accrued interest 11,455 – – – 11,455

$ 2,777,655 $ 4,296 $ 10,339 $ 14,635 $ 2,763,020

Allowance for credit losses
2008 Gross amount Specific General Total Net amount

Residential mortgages $ 1,978,004 $ 2,650 $ 8,728 $ 11,378 $ 1,966,626
Other mortgages 684,494 250 2,215 2,465 682,029
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale 361,657 – 708 708 360,949
Accrued interest 13,411 – – – 13,411

$ 3,037,566 $ 2,900 $ 11,651 $ 14,551 $ 3,023,015

Included in mortgages held for securitization or for sale are Government of Canada insured multi-unit residential mortgages of $127,866
(2008 – $69,201) which have been designated as held for trading and are carried at fair value determined by reference to the change
in the bid side of like term Government of Canada guaranteed debt securities plus a spread. Changes in fair value reflect changes in
interest rates that have occurred since commitment to the mortgage interest rate. The fair value adjustment of Government of Canada
guaranteed mortgages held for securitization is ($1,553) (2008 – $2,683). Mortgages held for sale include mortgages which are to be
pooled and discharged subsequent to the consolidated balance sheet date at their investment cost. These mortgages are carried at
amortized cost.

Included in other mortgages are certain mortgages designated as held for trading and are carried at fair value with changes in fair
value included in interest income − mortgages. As at December 31, 2009, mortgage principal outstanding for these mortgages held
for trading is $13,065 (2008 – $13,224) and the fair value adjustment is $518 (2008 – $1,211).

Real estate owned held for sale at December 31, 2009 amounted to $2,518 (2008 – nil) and are included in other assets (note 8).

Concentration of credit exposure may arise when a group of counterparties have similar economic characteristics or are located in the
same geographical region. The ability of these counterparties to meet contractual obligations may be affected by changing economic
or other conditions. The Company’s mortgage portfolio consists of $2,012,289 (2008 – $2,110,896) of mortgages secured by properties
located in the Province of Ontario and $447,599 (2008 – $583,182) of mortgages secured by properties located in the Province of
Alberta. All mortgages are secured by real estate property in Canada.

(b) Impaired and past due mortgages:

The Company classifies a mortgage receivable as impaired when, in the opinion of management, there is reasonable doubt as to the
collectability, either in whole or in part, of principal or interest. Conventional mortgages where payment is contractually past due 90
days and mortgages guaranteed by the Government of Canada where payment is contractually past due 365 days are automatically
placed on a non-accrual basis, unless management is reasonably assured as to the recoverability of principal and interest.
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7. Mortgages receivable (continued):

Outstanding impaired mortgages, net of allowance for credit losses are as follows:

2009 2008
Specific Specific

Gross allowance Net Gross allowance Net

Residential mortgages $ 29,635 $ (2,266) $ 27,369 $ 38,470 $ (2,650) $ 35,820
Other mortgages 7,927 (2,030) 5,897 1,161 (250) 911
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale – – – – – –

$ 37,562 $ (4,296) $ 33,266 $ 39,631 $ (2,900) $ 36,731

Outstanding mortgages that are past due but not classified as impaired are as follows:

2009
30 – 59 days 60 – 89 days 90+ days Total

Residential mortgages $ 7,467 $ 3,908 $ 5,450 $ 16,825
Other mortgages 7,300 – 531 7,831
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale – – – –

$ 14,767 $ 3,908 $ 5,981 $ 24,656

2008
30 – 59 days 60 – 89 days 90+ days Total

Residential mortgages $ 11,881 $ 3,908 $ 8,113 $ 23,902
Other mortgages 632 – – 632
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale – – – –

$ 12,513 $ 3,908 $ 8,113 $ 24,534

(c) Allowance for credit losses:

2009 2008
Specific General Specific General

allowance allowance Total allowance allowance Total

Balance, beginning of year $ 2,900 $ 11,651 $ 14,551 $ 150 $ 8,775 $ 8,925
Provision for credit losses 7,912 (1,312) 6,600 2,786 664 3,450
Allowance for credit losses on acquired portfolio – – – – 2,212 2,212
Realized losses (6,624) – (6,624) (36) – (36)
Recoveries 108 – 108 – – –
Balance, end of year $ 4,296 $ 10,339 $ 14,635 $ 2,900 $ 11,651 $ 14,551
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7. Mortgages receivable (continued):

(d) The following table presents information about the Company’s reported and securitized mortgages:

Principal amount
of mortgages

90 or more
2009 Gross amount days past due

Residential mortgages $ 5,876,844 $ 20,178
Other mortgages 739,656 2,361
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale 242,880 –
Total mortgages reported and securitized 6,859,380 22,539
Less mortgages securitized 4,093,180 4,112
Mortgages reported prior to accrued interest $ 2,766,200 $ 18,427

Principal amount
of mortgages
90 or more

2008 Gross amount days past due

Residential mortgages $ 4,803,067 $ 48,229
Other mortgages 684,494 1,161
Mortgages held for securitization or for sale 361,657 –
Total mortgages reported and securitized 5,849,218 49,390
Less mortgages securitized 2,825,063 1,763
Mortgages reported prior to accrued interest $ 3,024,155 $ 47,627

8. Other assets:

2009 2008

Income taxes recoverable $ 4,187 $ 11,588
Real estate owned (note 7) 2,518 –
Derivative financial instruments – securitization activities (note 6) 2,358 –
Capital assets 2,211 2,536
Receivables relating to securitization activities 2,075 2,643
Prepaid expenses and other 1,930 1,070
Accrued interest and dividends on non-mortgage assets 1,429 2,621
Derivative financial instruments – interest rate swaps (note 6) 294 14,836
Derivative financial instruments – hedges (note 6) 264 –
Mortgage commitments (note 5) – 296

$ 17,266 $ 35,590

9. Customer deposits:

2009 2008

Cashable GICs, payable on demand $ 688,782 $ 826,438
GICs with fixed maturity dates 2,582,186 2,789,869
Accrued interest 71,798 85,363
Deferred deposit agent commissions (10,447) (9,101)

$ 3,332,319 $ 3,692,569
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9. Customer deposits (continued):

Included in GICs with fixed maturity dates are $10,000 (2008 – $614,882) of GICs designated as held for trading. These GICs are carried at
fair value determined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using observed market interest rates offered for deposits
with similar terms. Changes in fair value reflect changes in interest rates which have occurred since the GICs were issued. The fair value
adjustment of ($238) (2008 – ($5,160)) is included in interest expense.

The following table outlines the maturity profile of customer deposits:

2009 2008
Maturities

Payable on Within 1 to 3 4 to 5
demand 1 year years years Total Total

GICs $ 688,782 $ 1,274,456 $ 985,816 $ 321,914 $ 3,270,968 $ 3,616,307

10. Income taxes:

The provision for income taxes shown in the consolidated statements of income differs from that obtained by applying statutory income
tax rates to income before the provision for income taxes for the following reasons:

2009 2008

Canadian statutory income tax rate 32.4% 33.3%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Tax-exempt income (2.9%) (4.5%)
Future tax rate decreases (4.2%) (2.2%)
Non-deductible expenses and other (0.6%) 0.6%

Effective income tax rate 24.7% 27.2%

The net future income tax liability is comprised of:

2009 2008

Future income tax assets:
Allowance for credit losses $ 2,715 $ 3,438
Share issue expenses 1,080 960
Deferred mortgage fees – 11
Other 1,360 –

5,155 4,409
Future income tax liabilities:

Deferred GIC commissions 3,020 2,892
Securitization retained interests 22,134 19,035
Other – 321

25,154 22,248
Net future income tax liability $ 19,999 $ 17,839
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11. Other liabilities:

2009 2008

Securitized mortgage servicing liability (note 5) $ 40,606 $ 19,945
Mortgagor realty taxes 10,317 9,048
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,787 3,505
Mortgage commitments (note 5) 14 –
Derivative financial instruments – securitization activities (note 6) – 3,527
Derivative financial instruments – hedges (note 6) – 408

$ 54,724 $ 36,433

12. Bank facilities:

(a) Operating credit facility:

The Company has a $35,000 credit facility in place with a major Canadian chartered bank. The facility is secured by the Company’s
investments in equity securities. There was no outstanding balance as December 31, 2009 (2008 – nil).

(b) Term loans:

The Company has non-revolving term loans totaling $27,500. Each loan is for a fixed term of five years with the balance of the loan,
together with all accrued and unpaid interest, due on the fifth anniversary of the loan. The proceeds of the loans were used to purchase
$15,000 of Series 6 and $12,500 of Series 7 subordinated debentures of the Company’s subsidiary, Equitable Trust. The loans are
repayable in full at the option of the Company at any time during their term. As collateral for the loans, the Company has provided a
promissory note, a general security agreement, a pledge of all the issued and outstanding shares in the capital of Equitable Trust and
an assignment of the subordinated debentures purchased from Equitable Trust using the proceeds of the loans. Interest is paid monthly.
Under the terms of these loans, the Company is required to maintain a minimum tangible net worth ratio, an interest coverage ratio
and a maximum assets-to-capital ratio. The Company is in compliance with the financial covenants required by the term loans.

2009
Interest Date loan Maturity Outstanding Issued during Repaid during Outstanding
rate received date December 31, 2008 the year the year December 31, 2009

6.37% March 2005 March 2010 $ 17,095 $ – $ 17,095 $ –
6.82% April 2006 April 2011 15,000 – – 15,000
6.41% March 2007 March 2012 12,500 – – 12,500

$ 44,595 $ – $ 17,095 $ 27,500

2008
Interest Date loan Maturity Outstanding Issued during Repaid during Outstanding
rate received date December 31, 2007 the year the year December 31, 2008

6.37% March 2005 March 2010 $ 17,095 $ – $ – $ 17,095
6.82% April 2006 April 2011 15,000 – – 15,000
6.41% March 2007 March 2012 12,500 – – 12,500

$ 44,595 $ – $ – $ 44,595
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13. Subordinated debentures:

The Company has issued debentures which are unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to the claims of depositors
and other liabilities of the Company. All subordinated debentures are redeemable at the Company’s option. Any redemption of this debt,
contractual or earlier, is subject to regulatory approval. Interest is paid quarterly on Series 5, 6 and 7 subordinated debentures. Interest
on Series 8 subordinated debentures is paid at a fixed rate of 6.50% per annum, payable semi-annually for the first five years of its 10-year
term. Thereafter, the Series 8 will bear a floating rate of interest to maturity at 90-day Banker’s Acceptance Rate plus 480 basis points,
payable quarterly.

2009
Outstanding Issued during Repaid during Outstanding

Debenture Interest rate Issue date Maturity date December 31, 2008 the year the year December 31, 2009

Series 5 7.31% – 7.58% 2004 / 05 January 2015 $ 17,519 $ – $ 17,519 $ –
Series 6 7.27% 2006 January 2016 5,000 – – 5,000
Series 7 7.10% 2007 January 2017 9,450 – – 9,450
Series 8 6.50% 2009 December 2019 – 23,221 – 23,221

$ 31,969 $ 23,221 $ 17,519 $ 37,671

2008
Debenture Interest rate Issue date Maturity date Outstanding Issued during Repaid during Outstanding

December 31, 2007 the year the year December 31, 2008

Series 5 7.31% – 7.58% 2004 / 05 January 2015 $ 17,519 $ – $ – $ 17,519
Series 6 7.27% 2006 January 2016 5,000 – – 5,000
Series 7 7.10% 2007 January 2017 9,450 – – 9,450

$ 31,969 $ – $ – $ 31,969

14. Shareholders’ equity:

(a) Capital stock:

Authorized:
Unlimited number of non-cumulative 5-year rate reset preferred shares, Series 1
Unlimited number of non-cumulative floating rate preferred shares, Series 2
Unlimited number of common shares

Issued and outstanding shares:

2009 2008
Number of Dividends Number of Dividends

shares Amount per share shares Amount per share

Preferred shares, Series 1:
Balance, beginning of year – $ – – $ –
Equity issue 2,000,000 48,523 – –

Balance, end of year 2,000,000 $ 48,523 $ 0.61 – $ – $ –
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14. Shareholders’ equity (continued):

2009 2008
Number of Dividends Number of Dividends

shares Amount per share shares Amount per share

Common shares:
Balance, beginning of year 14,882,710 $ 126,993 12,952,710 $ 87,062
Equity issue – – 1,900,000 39,340
Issued on reinvestment of dividends 11,136 189 – –
Issued on exercise of stock options 10,000 195 30,000 525
Transferred from contributed surplus relating

to the exercise of stock options – 47 – 66
Balance, end of year 14,903,846 $ 127,424 $ 0.40 14,882,710 $ 126,993 $ 0.40

(b) Preferred shares:

Issuance of preferred shares

On September 1, 2009, the Company issued 2,000,000 Series 1 Preferred Shares at a price of $25.00 per share for gross proceeds of
$50,000, before issue expenses. Expenses of $1,477 related to the issuance have been recorded in capital stock, net of income taxes
recovered of $638. The initial dividend was paid on December 31, 2009 and was $0.605822 per share.

Series 1– 5 Year Rate Reset Preferred Shares

Holders of Series 1 Preferred Shares are entitled to receive fixed quarterly non-cumulative preferential cash dividends, as and when declared
by the Board of Directors, which will be paid at a per annum rate of 7.25% per share for an initial period ending September 30, 2014.
Thereafter, the dividend rate will reset every five years at a level of 4.53% over the then five-year Government of Canada bond yield.
Series 1 Preferred Shares are redeemable in cash at the Company’s option, subject to prior regulatory approval, on September 30, 2014
and September 30 every five years thereafter, in whole or in part, at a price of $25.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends at
the date fixed for redemption. Series 1 Preferred Shares are convertible at the holder’s option, subject to certain conditions, to non-
cumulative floating rate preferred shares, Series 2 (the“Series 2 Preferred Shares”) on September 30, 2014 and on September 30 every five
years thereafter.

Series 2 – Floating Rate Preferred Shares

Holders of the Series 2 Preferred Shares will be entitled to receive a floating rate quarterly non-cumulative preferential cash dividend
equal to the 90-day Canadian Treasury Bill Rate plus 4.53%, as and when declared by the Board of Directors. Redeemable in cash at the
Company’s option, subject to prior regulatory approval, (i) on September 30, 2019 and September 30 every five years thereafter, in
whole or in part, at a price of $25.00 per share plus all declared and unpaid dividends at the date fixed for redemption; or (ii) $25.50 plus
all declared and unpaid dividends to the date fixed for redemption in the case of redemptions on any other date on or after
September 30, 2014. Convertible at the holder’s option, subject to certain conditions, to non-cumulative 5-year rate reset preferred
shares, Series 1 (the “Series 1 Preferred Shares”) on September 30, 2019 and on September 30 every five years thereafter.
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14. Shareholders’ equity (continued):

(c) Common shares:

Issuances of common shares

During 2009, 10,000 (2008 – 30,000) shares were issued as a result of the exercise of stock options for cash consideration of $195
(2008 – $525) and $47 (2008 – $66) was transferred from contributed surplus to common shares as a result of these exercises. In addition,
11,136 common shares were issued under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

In 2008, the Company issued 1,900,000 common shares, at a price of $21.50 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $40,850 before
issue expenses. Included in these issuances were 1,660,000 common shares which were issued by public offering and 240,000 common
shares which were issued under private placement. Expenses of $1,510 related to the issuances have been recorded in capital stock,
net of income taxes recovered of $698.

(d) Dividend reinvestment plan:

On March 4, 2009, the Company announced the introduction of a Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Participation in the plan is optional and
under the terms of the plan, cash dividends on common shares are used to purchase additional common shares at the volume weighted
average trading price of the common shares on the TSX for the five trading days immediately preceding the dividend payment date.
At the option of the Company, the common shares may be issued from the Company’s treasury or acquired from the open market at
market price.

(e) Dividend restrictions:

The Company’s subsidiary, Equitable Trust, is subject to minimum capital requirements, as prescribed by OSFI under the Trust and Loan
Companies Act (Canada). In addition, OSFI must be notified of any dividend declaration, and prescribes restrictions as to the amount
of dividends which can be paid out in any fiscal year.

15. Stock-based compensation:

(a) Stock-based compensation plan:

Under the Company’s stock option plan, options on common shares are periodically granted to eligible participants for terms of five or
six years and vest over a four or five-year period. The maximum number of common shares available for issuance under the plan is 10%
of the Company’s issued and outstanding common shares. The outstanding options expire on various dates to December 2015. A
summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average

stock options exercise price stock options exercise price

Outstanding, beginning of year 896,750 $ 22.99 692,500 $ 26.14
Granted 172,000 20.42 284,750 15.52
Exercised (10,000) 19.52 (30,000) 17.50
Forfeited/cancelled (244,000) 18.93 (50,500) 27.22
Outstanding, end of year 814,750 $ 23.71 896,750 $ 22.99

Exercisable, end of year 241,950 $ 27.05 263,500 $ 23.47
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15. Stock-based compensation (continued):

The following table summarizes information relating to stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2009:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted average

Number remaining contractual Number
Exercise price outstanding life (years) exercisable

$ 24.10 29,000 0.9 23,000
$ 28.75 125,000 1.9 75,000
$ 34.49 150,000 2.2 60,000
$ 31.75 30,000 2.6 12,000
$ 28.79 25,000 2.9 10,000
$ 28.63 30,000 2.9 12,000
$ 24.10 27,500 3.2 5,500
$ 20.90 30,000 3.3 6,000
$ 21.63 25,000 3.4 5,000
$ 11.55 171,250 3.9 33,450
$ 10.00 3,000 4.2 –
$ 20.60 169,000 5.9 –

Under the fair value-based method of accounting for stock options, the Company has recorded compensation expense in the amount of
$761 (2008 – $841) related to grants of options under the stock option plan. This amount has been credited to contributed surplus. The
fair value of options granted during 2009 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model, with the following
assumptions: (i) risk-free rate of 3.7% (2008 – 2.8%); (ii) expected option life of 4.0 years (2008 – 4.0 years); (iii) expected volatility of 30.0%
(2008 – 28.1%); and (iv) expected dividends of 1.9% (2008 – 2.8%). The weighted average fair value of each option granted during 2009
was $3.67 (2008 – $2.77).

(b) Deferred share unit plan:

On February 25, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a DSU Plan for Directors for implementation during the year ended December 31,
2009. Under the DSU Plan, notional units are allocated to a Director from time to time by the Board of Directors and the units vest at the
time of the grant. When an individual ceases to be a Director (the “Separation Date”), the DSUs shall be redeemed for cash no later than
the end of the first calendar year commencing after the Separation Date. The redemption value of each DSU redeemable by a Director is
the volume-weighted average trading price of the common shares of the Company on the TSX for the five trading days prior to the
Separation Date. In the event of any stock dividend, stock split, reverse stock split, consolidation, subdivision, reclassification or any other
change in the capital of the Company affecting its common shares, the Company will make, with respect to the number of DSUs outstanding
under the DSU Plan, any proportionate adjustment as it considers appropriate to reflect that change. A Director will be credited with
additional DSUs whenever a cash dividend is declared by the Company. The DSU Plan will be administered by the Board or a committee
thereof. For the year ending December 31, 2009, 8,046 DSUs had been granted by the Company. The Company has recorded compensation
expense in the amount of $172 (2008 – nil) related to DSUs granted during the year.
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16. Earnings per share:

Diluted earnings per share are calculated based on net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding, taking into account the dilution effect of stock options using the treasury stock method.

2009 2008

Earnings per common share – basic:
Net income $ 51,438 $ 38,611
Dividends on preferred shares 1,212 –
Net income available to common shareholders $ 50,226 $ 38,611
Weighted average basic number of common shares outstanding 14,888,797 13,841,836
Earnings per common share – basic $ 3.37 $ 2.79

Earnings per common share – diluted:
Net income available to common shareholders $ 50,226 $ 38,611
Weighted average basic number of common shares outstanding 14,888,797 13,841,836
Adjustment to weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Stock options 40,104 30,724
Weighted average diluted number of common shares outstanding 14,928,901 13,872,560
Earnings per common share – diluted $ 3.36 $ 2.78

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the calculation of the diluted earnings per share excluded 602,636 (2008 – 608,874) average options
outstanding with a weighted average exercise price of $26.73 (2008 – $26.81) as the exercise price of these options was greater than the
average price of the Company’s common shares.

17. Capital management:

Equitable Trust manages its capital in accordance with guidelines established by OSFI, based on standards issued by the Bank for
International Settlements, Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (Basel II). This guideline requires deposit-taking financial institutions
to maintain a minimum ratio of capital to risk-weighted assets and off-balance sheet items of 8%, of which 4% must be Tier 1 capital (“Tier 1”)
and the remainder supplementary capital (“Tier 2”). However, OSFI has established that deposit-taking institutions need to maintain a
minimum total capital ratio of 10%, with a Tier 1 ratio of not less than 7%. Equitable Trust’s Tier 1 capital is comprised of common and
preferred shareholder’s equity while Tier 2 capital is comprised of subordinated debentures. In addition to Tier 1 and total capital ratios,
Canadian deposit-taking institutions are required to ensure that their assets-to-capital multiple, which is calculated by dividing gross
adjusted assets by total capital, does not exceed the maximum level prescribed by OSFI.

On September 1, 2009, Equitable Trust issued 2,000,000 non-cumulative preferred shares at a price of $25.00 per share for gross proceeds
of $50,000. These preferred shares qualify as Tier 1 capital.

During the year, Equitable Trust redeemed $34,614 of Series 5 subordinated debentures, of which $17,095 was held by the Company.
The Company used these funds to repay a portion of its term loan facility and in turn issued $23,221 in Series 8 subordinated debentures.
The gross proceeds of this issuance were used by the Company to invest in Series 8 subordinated debentures issued by Equitable Trust.

Equitable Trust maintains capital management policies to govern the quality and quantity of capital utilized in its operations. The objective
of these policies is to ensure that adequate capital requirements are met, while providing sufficient return to investors. During the year,
Equitable Trust complied with all internal and external capital requirements.
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17. Capital management (continued):

Regulatory capital (relating solely to Equitable Trust) is as follows:

2009 2008

Tier 1 capital:
Common shares $ 129,337 $ 128,162
Non-cumulative preferred shares 50,000 –
Contributed surplus 2,852 2,138
Retained earnings 189,715 146,901
Accumulated other comprehensive loss(1) (5,953) (20,330)

Total 365,951 256,871

Tier 2 capital:
Subordinated debentures (Tier 2B)(2) 65,171 76,564

Total 65,171 76,564
Total regulatory capital $ 431,122 $ 333,435

(1) As prescribed by OSFI, certain components of accumulated other comprehensive income are included in the determination of regulatory capital. Net unrealized fair value losses on
available for sale equity securities are deducted in the determination of Tier 1 capital while net unrealized fair value gains on available for sale equity securities are included in
Tier 2A capital.

(2) Tier 2B capital may be included in Tier 2 capital to amaximum of 50% of net Tier 1 capital.

18. Commitments and contingencies:

(a) The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities as at December 31, 2009:

Payments due by period
Total Less than 1 year 1 – 3 years 4 – 5 years After 5 years

GIC principal and interest(1) $ 3,489,892 $ 2,036,110 $ 1,100,350 $ 353,432 $ –
Subordinated debentures principal and interest(1) 63,616 2,544 5,088 5,088 50,896
Bank term loans principal and interest(1) 30,592 1,824 28,768 – –
Other liabilities 54,257 22,725 17,684 10,488 3,360
Total contractual obligations $ 3,638,357 $ 2,063,203 $ 1,151,890 $ 369,008 $ 54,256

(1) The balances for the financial liabilities above will not agree with those in our consolidated balance sheet as this table incorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted basis,
including both principal and interest.
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18. Commitments and contingencies (continued):

(b) The Company is committed to annual payments under two non-cancellable operating leases for office premises through 2015. Annual
payments are:

2010 $ 575
2011 552
2012 540
2013 572
2014 572
Thereafter 572

$ 3,383

In addition to these minimum lease payments for premises rental, the Company will pay its share of common area maintenance and
realty taxes over the term of the leases.

(c) The Company has commitments to fund a total of $318,919 (2008 – $94,361) of mortgages in the ordinary course of business at year
end.

(d) In the normal course of operations, the Company enters into agreements that provide general obligations in connection with its loan
securitization activities. The nature of these agreements prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum
amount required to be paid. There are no expected credit losses as the mortgages are government guaranteed.

(e) The Company is subject to various claims and litigation arising from time to time in the ordinary course of business. Management has
determined that the aggregate liability, if any, which may result from various outstanding legal proceedings would not be material
and no provisions have been recorded in these consolidated financial statements.

19. Related party transactions:

Certain of the Company’s directors and officers have purchased GIC deposits, and/or purchased subordinated debentures from the
Company. These purchases were made in the ordinary course of business at terms comparable to those offered to unrelated parties. As
at December 31, 2009, directors and officers held $1,701 (2008 – $652) of GIC deposits and $3,650 (2008 – $3,947) of subordinated
debentures.

In 2008, the Company issued 1,900,000 common shares, at a price of $21.50 per share for aggregate gross proceeds of $40,850 before issue
expenses. Included in the issuance were 1,660,000 common shares which were issued by public offering and 240,000 common shares
which were issued under private placement to Emberwood Glen Enterprises Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oakwest Corporation
Limited, whose controlling shareholders are directors of the Company.
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20. Interest rate sensitivity:

The following table shows the Company’s position with regard to interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and equity on the date of the
earlier of contractual maturity or repricing date, as at December 31, 2009:

0 – 3 4 – 12 1 – 5 Greater than Non-interest
Floating rate months months years 5 years sensitive Total(1)(2)(3)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents and

restricted cash $ 400,835 $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ 400,835
Effective interest rate 0.51% – – – – – 0.51%

Investments purchased under reverse
repurchase agreements – 129,721 – – – – 129,721

Effective interest rate – 0.23% – – – – 0.23%

Investments – 48,858 34,872 301,656 9,072 (6,421) 388,037
Effective interest rate – 4.35% 4.28% 3.47% 4.01% – 3.73%

Securitization retained interests – 8,763 25,615 99,536 12,215 1,066 147,195
Effective interest rate – 3.48% 3.48% 3.42% 4.28% – 3.48%

Mortgages receivable 821,444 217,930 665,817 1,017,970 25,660 14,199 2,763,020
Effective interest rate 4.32% 6.23% 5.73% 6.24% 5.94% – 5.51%

Other assets – – – – – 17,266 17,266
Total assets $ 1,222,279 $ 405,272 $ 726,304 $ 1,419,162 $ 46,947 $ 26,110 $ 3,846,074

Liabilities:
Customer deposits $ 688,782 $ 294,176 $ 980,042 $ 1,307,730 $ – $ 61,589 $ 3,332,319
Effective interest rate 0.72% 1.18% 2.17% 3.68% – – 2.34%

Other liabilities – – – – – 74,723 74,723

Bank term loans – – – 27,500 – – 27,500
Effective interest rate – – – 6.63% – – 6.63%

Subordinated debentures – – – 23,221 14,450 – 37,671
Effective interest rate – – – 6.50% 7.16% – 6.75%

Shareholders’equity – – – 48,523 – 325,338 373,861
Total liabilities and shareholders’equity $ 688,782 $ 294,176 $ 980,042 $ 1,406,974 $ 14,450 $ 461,650 $ 3,846,074
Excess (deficiency) of assets over

liabilities and shareholders’equity $ 533,497 $ 111,096 $ (253,738) $ 12,188 $ 32,497 $ (435,540) $ –

Total assets – 2008 $ 1,513,756 $ 877,383 $ 295,808 $ 1,323,037 $ 12,648 $ 64,919 $ 4,087,551
Total liabilities and shareholders’equity – 2008 $ 826,438 $ 1,198,003 $ 542,094 $ 1,089,208 $ 31,969 $ 399,839 $ 4,087,551
Excess (deficiency) of assets over liabilities

and shareholders’equity – 2008 $ 687,318 $ (320,620) $ (246,286) $ 233,829 $ (19,321) $ (334,920) $ –

(1) Totals include interest sensitive interest rate hedges at the notional amount.
(2) Accrued interest is excluded in calculating interest sensitive assets and liabilities.
(3) Potential prepayments of fixed rate mortgages have not been estimated. Cashable GICs are included with floating rate liabilities as these are cashable by the depositor upon demand.
Any prepayments of subordinated debentures, contractual or otherwise, have not been estimated as these would require pre-approval by OSFI.
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20. Interest rate sensitivity (continued):

At December 31, 2009, an immediate and sustained 1.0% decrease in interest rates that is not allowed to decrease beyond a floor of 0% (and
is therefore not allowed to be negative) would positively impact net interest income by $0.2 million during the 12 months that follow. For the
purpose of this sensitivity analysis, Cashable GICs are assumed to perform in the same manner as floating rate liabilities. Certain assumptions
have been made with respect to prepayment of fixed rate mortgages. No prepayments of subordinated debentures and bank term loans,
contractual or otherwise, have been assumed.
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